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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 1 No
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IEH CORPORATION
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)
and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Any statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kthat are not
statements of historical fact may be forward-looking statements. When we use the words “anticipates,” “plans,” “estimates,” “expects,” “believes,” “should,”
“could,” “may,” “will” and similar expressions, we are identifying forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our
current expectations and projections about future financial events and financial trends that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of operations,
business strategy and financial needs. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties described under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A, and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and may include statements related to, among other things: macroeconomic factors, including inflationary
pressures, supply shortages and recessionary pressures; impact of tariffs on sourcing of raw materials; accounting estimates and assumptions; pricing pressures
on our product caused by competition; the risk that our products will not gain market acceptance; our ability to obtain additional financing; our ability to
successfully prevent our registration with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) from being suspended or revoked; our ability to operate
our accounting systems effectively; our ability to protect intellectual property; our ability to integrate our Pennsylvania facility into our operations; and our
ability to attract and retain key employees. No forward-looking statement is a guarantee of future performance and you should not place undue reliance on any
forward-looking statement. Our actual results may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many factors
about which we are unsure, including many factors beyond our control.

99 ¢ EERT3

Except as may be required by applicable law, we do not undertake or intend to update or revise our forward-looking statements, and we assume no obligation to
update forward-looking statements contained in this report as a result of new information or future events or developments. Thus, you should not assume that
our silence over time means that actual events are bearing out as expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. You should carefully review and
consider the various disclosures we make in this report and our other reports filed with the SEC that attempt to advise interested parties of the risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may affect our business.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results and events anticipated or implied by such forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to:

e changes in the market acceptance of our products and services;
e increased levels of competition;

e changes and uncertainties in political, economic or regulatory conditions generally and in the markets in which we operate, including, but not
limited to, changes and uncertainties around tariffs and supply chain constraints;

e  our relationships with our key customers;

e adverse conditions in the industries in which our customers operate;

e our ability to retain and attract senior management and other key employees;

e our ability to quickly and effectively respond to new technological developments;

e our ability to protect our trade secrets or other proprietary rights, operate without infringing upon the proprietary rights of others and prevent
others from infringing on our proprietary rights; and

e other risks, including those described in the “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Item 1.

IEH CORPORATION
PART 1

Business:

IEH Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “IEH” or the “Company”’) began operations in New York, New York in 1941 and was incorporated as a
New York corporation in March 1943, when Louis Offerman founded L. Offerman Tool & Die with his two sons, Bernard and Seymour.

In the late 1960’s, IEH bought a license to manufacture Hyperboloid sockets, and began making printed circuit board (“PCB”) connectors for the
defense and aerospace industries, in accordance with the MIL-DTL-55302 military specification. We have been making these connectors and
variations of them ever since, and today, we are one of the leaders in Hyperboloid connectors and contacts.

In use for nearly 50 years under demanding conditions, Hyperboloid technology has proven itself to be the leading design for integrity and
reliability. On avionics platforms, military and commercial aerospace equipment, engine control systems, missiles and torpedoes, vehicular
electronics, satellites and rocket launchers, medical devices, industrial and environmental controls, test equipment, pin grid array (“PGA”) sockets
and countless other rugged applications, Hyperboloid aims to be the highest reliability connector available.

At IEH, we design and manufacture Hyperboloid connectors that not only accommodate, but exceed military and aerospace specification standards.
Years after inception, our Hyperboloid solutions continue to prove their reliability and benefits. Our engineers have long provided reliable and
innovative Hyperboloid interconnect solutions for defense, commercial, aerospace and medical use.

We are a family managed business, as Louis’ great-grandson, Mr. David Offerman, is the President and Chief Executive Officer, and we believe that
we still manufacture the highest quality products for the most demanding environments. But most importantly, we are always looking ahead. We are
committed to developing new technology that meets the demands of our fast-paced customers, and we are steadfast about always exceeding our
customers’ expectations.

IEH serves customers in the United States and internationally. Our customers include defense contractors, commercial aerospace equipment
manufacturers, medical device manufacturers, oil and gas exploration firms, and commercial space launch companies. We sell both directly and
through distributors. We maintain a Military Specification QPL (Qualified Product Listing), and an ISO (International Standards Organization)
9001:2015 Certification.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, approximately 65.7% and 60.6%, respectively, of the Company’s sales were for defense
applications, 19.9% and 27.3%, respectively, for commercial aerospace, and 14.4% and 12.1%, respectively, for commercial space launch, medical,
oil and gas and industrial markets.

New Product Development:

IEH continues to expand the scope and range of its PCB connector offerings. We have also increased the breadth of our products by introducing
high-speed connectors for data transmission, as well as hybrid power/signal connectors. New product developments are primarily driven by
customer demand. IEH also continues to specialize in custom interconnects designed specifically for customer applications. Our engineers work in
conjunction with customer engineers to create, refine and manufacture connectors and interconnect solutions that meet their specific, demanding
needs. IEH engineers are renowned for their flexibility and creativity in solving customer interconnect challenges and providing innovative
solutions.




Marketing and Sales:

The market for connectors and interconnect devices, domestic and worldwide, is highly fragmented as a result of the manufacture by many
companies of a multitude of different types and varieties of connectors and interconnects. For example, connectors include: printed wiring board,
rectangular 1/O, circular, planar coaxial, IC socket and fiber optic. The Company has been servicing a niche in the market by manufacturing
connectors containing Hyperboloid contact designs in the printed wiring board style of connectors.

The Company is continuously experimenting with innovative connection designs, which may cause it to alter its marketing plans in the future if a
market should develop for any of its current or future innovative designs. The Company is continually reviewing product lines being sold in the
connector and interconnect marketplace. We are committed to expanding our product offering and we consider that many of our current or future
custom designs will become product lines.

The Company’s products are marketed to Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEM”) directly and through authorized representatives and
distributors serving primarily the defense, aerospace, medical, space, oil and gas, industrial, test equipment and commercial electronics markets. The
Company is also involved in developing new connectors for specific uses, which result from changes in technology. The Company assists customers
in the development and design of connectors for specific customer applications. This service is marketed to customers who require the development
of connectors and interconnection devices specially designed to accommodate the customers’ own products.

The Company is primarily a manufacturer and its products are essentially basic components of larger assemblies of finished goods. During the year
ended March 31, 2025, two customers accounted for 31.9% of the Company’s net revenues, each represented 17.8% and 14.1%, respectively. During
the year ended March 31, 2024, two customers accounted for 29.9% of the Company’s net revenues, each represented 17.5% and 12.4%,
respectively.

The Company currently employs 21 independent sales representatives and distributors to market its products in all regions in the United States as
well as in Canada, the European Union, Southeast Asia, Central Asia and the Middle East. These independent sales representatives also promote the
product lines of other electronics manufacturers; however, they do not promote the product lines of manufacturers which compete directly with the
Company’s products. These sales representatives accounted for approximately 73% of the Company’s net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2025 (with the balance of Company net sales being generated via direct customer contact).

International sales accounted for approximately 5.7% and 8.5% of net sales for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
Approximately 8.0% and 19.4% of the aforementioned international net sales for fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively,
represent sales to customers located in China.

We also market our products and capabilities through our website, www.iehcorp.com. Our product series HBH Hybrid Power/Signal Hyperboloid
Connectors, has a configuration tool that allows users to build their own hybrid connector and download 3D models to incorporate into their
modules.

Backlog of Orders/Capital Requirements:

Our customers typically enter into supply arrangements for the purchase of our products which we will produce and deliver over time. On an as-
needed basis, our customers place specific production orders, and these orders are generally filled and shipped within twelve weeks. Our backlog
consists of supply arrangements where the anticipated unfulfilled shipping dates are within approximately twelve months. Because of the possibility
of customer changes in delivery schedules or the cancellation of orders, our backlog as of any particular date may not be indicative of revenue in any
future period. The backlog amounted to approximately $12,445,000 at March 31, 2025 as compared to $18,285,600 at March 31, 2024. The decrease
in total backlog as of March 31, 2025 compared with the previous year is primarily due to decreases in defense orders as the Company awaits
several key customer contracts to be executed and due to sluggish recovery in commercial aerospace as the industry navigates through production,
labor and regulatory issues related to a major airplane producer.




A portion of these backlog orders are subject to cancellation or postponement of delivery dates and, therefore, no assurance can be given that actual
sales will result from these orders. The Company does not foresee any problems which would prevent it from fulfilling these orders.

Forward-Looking Business Trends:

Our operations are subject to global economic and geopolitical risks. For example, the ongoing and evolving conflicts in Eastern Europe and the

Middle East have impacted economic activity as well as the availability and price of raw materials and energy. The Company continues to actively
monitor these factors and find ways to mitigate the impact on its operations. The company also continues to monitor the evolving situation around
imposition of tariffs by the current administration and evaluate its impact on sourcing of raw materials and revenue generated from global markets.

For additional information on risk factors that could impact our results, please refer to “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Competition:

The design, development, manufacture and distribution of electrical connectors and interconnection devices is a highly competitive field. The
Company principally competes with both large and small companies who also produce high performance connectors in printed circuits and wiring
boards for high technology applications. The Company competes by adapting certain technologies to meet specific product applications, aiming to
produce connectors cost-effectively, and through its production capabilities. In addition, there are many companies who offer connectors with
designs similar to those utilized by the Company and are direct competitors of the Company.

The primary basis upon which the Company competes is product performance and production capabilities. The Company usually receives job orders
after submitting bids pursuant to customer-issued specifications for connectors and interconnects. The Company’s bid can be for a new item that
requires the item to perform under harsh environment requirements or it can be for a standard catalog item. The Company also offers engineering
services to its customers in designing and developing connectors for specialized products and specific customer applications. This enables the
Company to receive a competitive advantage over those companies who basically manufacture connectors based solely or primarily on catalog
specifications.

Some of the Company’s competitors may have greater financial resources than the Company and no assurances can be given that the Company will
be able to compete effectively with these companies in the future.

Suppliers of Raw Materials and Component Parts:

The Company utilizes a variety of raw materials and manufactured component parts, which it purchases from various suppliers. These materials and
components are available from numerous sources and the Company does not believe that it will have a problem obtaining such materials and parts in
the future, both locally or globally.

However, any delay in the Company’s ability to obtain necessary raw materials and component parts may affect its ability to meet customer
production needs. In anticipation of such delays, the Company carries an inventory of raw materials and component parts to avoid shortages and to
insure continued production. However, as global supply chains continue to be constrained and impacted, by geopolitical and economic conditions,
there can be no assurance that we will not be affected in the future, and we believe that raw materials and supply chains may continue to be affected
in fiscal year 2026 and beyond in part due to global uncertainty.

Additionally, continuing inflationary pressures have been impacting virtually all aspects of our materials and suppliers, including power prices and
labor costs, and are likely to impact our fiscal year 2026 results.




Human Capital Management:
Our employees are our greatest resource and an integral component to our operations. Their health, safety and well-being are a priority for us.
Talent

We are focused on sourcing, attracting, and retaining talent, especially those with technical backgrounds. We recognize and reward performance
while continually working to develop, engage and retain high-performing employees. We have made significant investments to provide ongoing
training and career development for our employees. We provide competitive compensation and comprehensive benefits.

As of March 31, 2025, we employed 164 people of which 163 are full-time employees. Most of the employees engaged in manufacturing and testing
activities are covered by a collective bargaining agreement with the United Auto Workers of America, Local 259 (the “Union”), which expires on
March 31, 2027.

Safety/Health and Wellness

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment for our employees. Aligned with our values, we strive to continuously monitor
our work environment to keep our employees safe. We have an open-door policy for all employees to report concerns or safety issues. Our
commitment to employee safety also includes ongoing safety communications with safety topics and providing safety training.

Governmental Regulations:

The Company is subject to federal regulations, principally under the Occupational Safety and Health Act (“OSHA”), Defense Supply Command
Columbus (“DSCC”) and the Defense Logistics Agency (“DLA”).

OSHA provides federal guidelines and specifications to companies in order to insure the health and safety of employees.

DSCC oversees the quality and specifications of products and components manufactured and sold to the government and the defense industry.
DSCC’s primary customer is the U.S. military. Many of our products appear on DLA Qualified Products Listing (“QPL”). To remain qualified, the
Company submits its products to an outside testing laboratory approved by DLA which performs all required testing. After review by the Company
of the testing results, the data is then submitted to DLA. The Company and its products are only approved and remain on the QPL if the Company
has passed all testing requirements. Although DLA continuously requires suppliers to meet changing specifications, the Company has not
encountered any significant problems meeting such specifications and its products have, in the past, been approved. The Company is unaware of any
changes in the governmental regulations which are expected to materially affect the Company’s business.

The Company is also subject to various laws and governmental regulations concerning environmental matters. Compliance with these federal, state,
and local laws and regulations related to protection of the environment has had no material effect on our business.




Item 1A.

Available Information

Our website is www.iehcorp.com. On our website we make available at no cost our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-
Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish them to, the SEC. The information contained on our website is not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and not
incorporated by reference herein.

Risk Factors:

In evaluating our Company and our business, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below, together with the other
information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The occurrence of one or more of the events or circumstances described in these risk factors, alone
or in combination with other events or circumstances, may have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, revenue, financial condition,
results of operations or future prospects, in which case the market price of our common stock could decline, and you could lose part or all of your
investment. The material and other risks and uncertainties summarized in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and described below are not intended to
be exhaustive and are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial
may also impair our business. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including the risks
described below. See the section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”.

Risks Related to Our Business:

We operate in a niche industry and our business results may vary from year to year depending upon, among other things, the nature of the
ordering cycle of our products which makes it hard to predict demand for our business and may adversely impact our business and results of
operations.

We manufacture PCB connector offerings for specialized applications and our customers include defense contractors, commercial aerospace
equipment manufacturers, medical device manufacturers, oil and gas exploration firms, and commercial space launch companies. Our products are
typically a small part in a larger end product used by our customers. Supply shortages or other factors impacting third party suppliers that supply
different parts to our customers for use in the same end product in which our product is used can impact demand for our products. In addition, due to
the specialized nature of our products, we often manufacture limited quantities of our products. Since we are producing customized products in
smaller quantities, we are not able to achieve economies of scale, unable to obtain bulk discounts on our orders for raw materials and sometimes the
fulfillment is delayed because our suppliers may prioritize larger orders. All of these factors may have an adverse impact on our business and results
of operations.

In addition, the ultimate end product in which our products are used have long and irregular ordering cycles which may cause our business results to
vary year to year. For example, some of our products are used in airplanes which often are operable for about thirty years and thus are replaced over
longer time horizons than many other products and are susceptible to changes in the demand for travel. The ordering cycle for our customers is often
irregular and hard to predict. This makes it difficult for us to anticipate when demand increases will occur and adjust our business and ordering to
accommodate fluctuations in demand. If we are not able to ramp production up or down quickly enough in response to rapid changes in demand, we
may not be able to effectively manage our costs, which could negatively impact operating results, and we may lose sales and market share.




The loss of certain substantial customers could materially and adversely affect us.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, two customers accounted for 31.9% of the Company’s net revenues, each represented 17.8% and 14.1%,
respectively. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, two customers accounted for 29.9% of the Company’s net revenues, each represented
17.5% and 12.4%, respectively. We believe that the loss of one or more of our larger customers could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position and results of operations. We have experienced significant concentrations of customers in prior years. Furthermore, factors that negatively
impact the businesses of our major customers could materially and adversely affect us even if the customer represents a relatively small part of our
net sales.

We may need additional financing in the future and if we are unable to raise capital when needed, we could be forced to delay, reduce or
eliminate our production or business efforts.

Although we have sufficient working capital in the short term, we may need to raise additional capital in connection with our continuing operations
through the debt or equity markets in the future. If we are unable to raise capital when needed or on attractive terms, we could be forced to delay,
reduce or eliminate our business efforts. Any capital raising efforts would also be impacted by our ongoing administrative proceeding with the SEC
pursuant to Section 12 (j) of the Exchange Act instituted on August 17, 2022, and whether the SEC suspends for up to twelve months, or revokes, the
registration of our securities. Any additional fundraising efforts may divert our management from their day-to-day activities, which may adversely
affect our business. In addition, we cannot guarantee that future financing will be available in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at
all. Additionally, market volatility resulting from macroeconomic conditions or other factors could also adversely impact our ability to access capital
as and when needed. Moreover, the terms of any financing may adversely aftect the holdings or the rights of our shareholders and the issuance of
additional securities, whether equity or debt, by us, or the possibility of such issuance, may cause the market price of our shares to decline. The sale
of additional equity or convertible securities would dilute all of our shareholders and may decrease our stock price. The incurrence of indebtedness
could result in increased fixed payment obligations and we may be required to agree to certain restrictive covenants, such as limitations on our
ability to incur additional debt, limitations on our ability to acquire, sell, or license intellectual property rights and other operating restrictions that
could adversely impact our ability to conduct our business. We could also be required to seek funds through arrangements with partners or others
and we may be required to relinquish rights to some of our intellectual property or otherwise agree to terms unfavorable to us, any of which may
have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and prospects. If we are unable to obtain funding on a timely basis, our business,
financial condition and results of operations may be materially affected.




The Company may have limited intellectual property protection.

The Company possesses certain proprietary intellectual property, including but not limited to, trade secrets, know-how and proprietary processes.
The Company relies on this intellectual property, know-how and other proprietary information, and requires employees, consultants and suppliers to
sign confidentiality agreements. However, these confidentiality agreements may be breached, and the Company may not have adequate remedies for
such breaches. Third parties may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information without infringing upon any proprietary
technology. Third parties may otherwise gain access to proprietary information and adopt it in a competitive manner. Any loss of intellectual
property protection may have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations or prospects.

We are a niche manufacturer of highly engineered products that are high value/short run, using a unique mix of labor and capital equipment.

Our engineers provide Hyperboloid interconnect solutions for defense, commercial, aerospace and medical use. Our products are specialized and
require special equipment and skilled workers to operate our machinery. Our reliance on our skilled labor and capital equipment subjects us to a
number of risks that could negatively affect our ability to manufacture our products and harm our business, including interruption of supply. We
expect our overall reliance on our mix of labor and capital equipment to continue. Any significant delay or interruption in our mix of labor and
capital equipment could impair our ability to meet the demand of our customers and could harm our business. With changes in demand, labor costs,
and capital equipment costs, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain the labor and capital equipment mix and therefore maintain
our margins.

A significant design, manufacturing or supplier quality issue could adversely affect profitability.

As a manufacturer of highly engineered products, the performance, reliability and productivity of the Company’s products are some of its
competitive advantages. While the Company prides itself on implementing procedures to ensure the quality and performance of its products and
suppliers, a significant quality or product issue, whether due to design, performance, manufacturing or supplier quality issue, could lead to scrapping
of raw materials, finished goods or returned products, the deterioration in a customer relationship, or other action that could adversely affect costs,
future sales and profitability.




A shortage of availability or an increase in the cost of raw materials and other resources may adversely impact our ability to manufacture our
products at cost effective prices and thus may negatively impact profit margins.

Our results of operations may be materially adversely impacted by difficulties in obtaining raw materials, supplies, power, labor and any other items
needed for the production of our products, as well as by the effects of quality deviations in raw materials and the effects of significant fluctuations in
the prices paid. Many of these materials and components are produced by a limited number of suppliers and their availability to us may be
constrained by supplier capacity. In recent periods, we have seen the impacts of inflation drive up costs of materials and labor significantly. Any
material disruption to or continuing increases in prices of our raw materials and other resources could materially adversely affect our financial
results. Profit margins will be materially and adversely impacted if we are not able to reduce our costs of production, introduce technological
innovations, or pass through cost increases to customers.

We may be subject to work stoppages at our facilities or those of our principal customers and suppliers, which could seriously impact the
profitability of our business.

Our unionized workforce and those of our customers and suppliers may experience work stoppages during collective bargaining agreement
negotiations. The Company and the Union have a collective bargaining agreement, which expires on March 31, 2027.

In the future, if we are unable to negotiate an acceptable new agreement with the Union, upon expiration of an existing contract, we could
experience a strike or work stoppage, which could seriously impact the profitability of our business. Contingency plans have been developed that
would allow production to continue in the event of a strike but we cannot guarantee the effectiveness of such plans.

Our success is dependent on the performance of our management and the cooperation, performance and retention of our executive officers and
key employees.

Our business and operations are substantially dependent on the performance of our senior management team and executive officers. If our
management team is unable to perform it may adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition. We do not maintain “key person”
life insurance on any of our executive officers. The loss of one or several key employees could seriously harm our business. Any reorganization or
reduction in the size of our employee base could harm our ability to attract and retain other valuable employees critical to the success of our
business.

If we lose key personnel or fail to integrate replacement personnel successfully, our ability to manage our business could be impaired.

Our future success depends upon the continued service of our key management, technical, sales, finance, and other critical personnel. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to retain them. The loss of one or several key employees could result in significant disruptions to our operations,
including adversely affecting the timeliness of product releases, the successful implementation and completion of Company initiatives, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting, and the results of our operations. In
addition, hiring, training, and successfully integrating replacement sales and other personnel could be time consuming, may cause additional
disruptions to our operations, and may be unsuccessful, which could negatively impact future revenues.




We are a small business that competes globally in a competitive industry that is highly fragmented.

The market for connectors and interconnect devices, domestic and worldwide, is highly fragmented as a result of the manufacture by many
companies of a multitude of different types and varieties of connectors and interconnects. The Company has been servicing a niche in the market by
manufacturing connectors containing Hyperboloid contact designs in the printed wiring board style of connectors. The connector and interconnect
device industry is competitive and fragmented and includes numerous small organizations capable of competing in the markets we target. Although
large companies tend to not compete directly with us due to the customized and small batch nature of our business, large companies compete in
adjacent industries and possess substantially greater financial and other resources than we do. Larger competitors’ greater resources could allow
those competitors to compete more effectively than we can. Our competitors have successfully built their names in the industry in which we
compete. These various competitors may be able to offer products more competitively priced and more widely available than our offerings, and also
have greater resources to acquire members and suppliers than us. Failure to compete in the industry in which we operate would adversely affect our
results of operations.

A reduction in U.S. Government funding or a change in U.S. Government spending priorities could have an adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and equity.

We expect changes in policy positions and spending priorities from the new Administration. Our U.S. Government programs must compete with
programs managed by other government contractors and with other policy imperatives for consideration for limited resources and for uncertain
levels of funding during the budget and appropriations process. Although multi-year contracts may be authorized and appropriated in connection
with major procurements, Congress generally appropriates funds on a U.S. Government fiscal year (“GFY”) basis. Procurement funds are typically
disbursed over the course of one to three years. Consequently, programs often initially receive only partial funding, and additional funds are
obligated only as Congress authorizes further appropriations. We cannot predict the extent to which total funding and/or funding for individual
programs will be changed as part of the annual appropriations process ultimately approved by Congress and the President or in separate
supplemental appropriations or continuing resolutions, as applicable. Budget and appropriations decisions made by the U.S. Government are outside
of our control and may have long-term consequences for our business. U.S. Government spending priorities and levels remain uncertain and difficult
to predict, especially with a new administration, and are affected by numerous factors, including the U.S. Government’s budget deficit and the
national debt. A change in U.S. Government spending priorities or an increase in non-procurement spending at the expense of our programs, or a
reduction in total U.S. Government spending on an absolute or inflation-adjusted basis, could have material adverse consequences on our current or
future business. If Congress does not enact a full-year GFY 2025 appropriations bill, the U.S. Government may not be able to fulfill its funding
obligations, and there could be significant disruption to all discretionary programs and corresponding impacts on the entire defense industry, which
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flow. Any inability of the U.S. Government to complete its
budget process for any GFY and resulting operation on funding levels equivalent to its prior fiscal year pursuant to a Continuing Resolution (“CR”)
or shut down, also could have material adverse consequences on our current or future business.

Accounting Related Risks and Other Factors:

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in our failure to accurately or timely report our
financial condition or results of operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and for evaluating and reporting
on the effectiveness of our system of internal control. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). As a public company, we are required to comply with
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and other rules that govern public companies. In particular, we are required to review on an annual basis our internal control
over financial reporting, and on a quarterly and annual basis to evaluate and disclose changes in our internal control over financial reporting. We are
also required to certify our compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires us to furnish annually a report by management
on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. In the event that we are unable to maintain or achieve compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules, we may incur significant and additional expenses for remedial efforts that may
negatively impact our financial performance, and such process may result in a diversion of management’s time and attention. As a result, we and the
market price of our common stock may be adversely affected.

Management performed an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2025 and concluded that
our internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, as we have not fully established an effective
control environment due to the ineffective design and implementation of Information Technology General Controls (“ITGC”). Our ITGC
deficiencies included improperly designed controls pertaining to change management and user access rights over systems that are critical to our
system of financial reporting. We have taken and continue to take remedial steps to improve our internal control over financial reporting. For further
discussion of the material weaknesses identified and our remedial efforts, see Item 9A, Controls and Procedures.

We are working to remediate the identified material weakness in our ITGC. We may not be able to fully remediate this material weakness until
additional steps have been completed and have been operating effectively for a sufficient period of time. We cannot assure you that the measures we
have taken to date and plan to take will be sufficient to remediate the material weaknesses we identified or avoid the identification of additional
material weaknesses in the future. Moreover, because of the inherent limitations of any control system, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis, or at all.




We identified certain misstatements to our previously issued financial statements and have restated the financial statements described below,
which has exposed us to a number of additional risks and uncertainties.

On June 22, 2023, we filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020. Included therein, we
reported that we had restated our previously issued audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 and our interim financial
statements for the quarterly periods ended September 27, 2019 and December 31, 2019. We further reported that these restatements were in
connection with the Company’s migration to its then new accounting system, including the reconciliation of the old and new systems.

As aresult of the misstatements and the restatement, we have become subject to a number of additional risks and uncertainties and unanticipated
costs for accounting, legal and other fees and expenses, including risks of lawsuits. Any actions, lawsuits or other legal proceedings related to the
misstatements or the restatement could result in reputational harm, legal defense and other costs, regardless of the outcome of the lawsuit or
proceeding. In addition, we are at risk for loss of investor confidence, loss of key employees, changes in management or our Board of Directors (the
“Board of Directors” or the “Board”) and other reputational issues, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
position and results of operations.

The Board of Directors, members of management, and our accounting and other staff previously has spent significant time on the restatement and
remediation and will continue to devote significant time on monitoring and enhancing control activities related to our internal control over financial
reporting.

We may face litigation and regulatory action relating to the restatement of our financial statements.

We cannot ensure that litigation or other claims by shareholders will not be brought in the future arising out of the restatement of our financial
statements. We may also be subject to further examinations, investigations, proceedings and orders by regulatory authorities, including a cease and
desist order, suspension of trading of our securities, delisting of our securities and/or the assessment of possible civil monetary penalties. Any such
further actions could be expensive and damaging to our business, results of operations and financial condition.

RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANY’S PREVIOUS LATE PERIODIC FILINGS AND THE RELATED SEC’S ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEEDING PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(j)

As a result of the Company'’s previous late periodic filings, on August 17, 2022, the SEC instituted an administrative proceeding pursuant to
Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act to determine whether it is appropriate to suspend for up to twelve months or alternatively to revoke the
registration of the Company’s common stock. IEH conducted a prehearing conference with the SEC’s staff, filed an Opposition Brief to the SEC
Division of Enforcement’s Motion for Summary Disposition, and although we are now current in our periodic reporting to the SEC and we have
filed a Reply in Support of our Motion for Summary Disposition, and submitted a request for expediting the resolution of the administrative
proceeding, the ultimate outcome of the administrative proceeding may be adverse to the Company, and may result in the suspension or
revocation of the registration of our common stock.

Since November 30, 2023, we have been current in our Exchange Act periodic reporting obligations. Previously, however, the Company was
delinquent in its periodic reporting obligations and as a result the SEC instituted administrative proceedings on August 17, 2022 (the “Order”)
pursuant to Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act to suspend or revoke the registration of our common stock. On October 3, 2022, we filed an answer to
the Order and on October 13, 2022, we conducted a prehearing conference with SEC staff in the Division of Enforcement. On March 1, 2023 the
SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, on March 15, 2023, IEH filed an opposition brief to the SEC Division of
Enforcement’s Motion for Summary Disposition, and on March 29, 2023, the SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed a Reply in Support of its Motion
for Summary Disposition. On December 22, 2023, the Company filed a Cross-Motion for Summary Disposition after the Company cured all of its
delinquencies and the SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed an opposition to the Company’s Cross-Motion for Summary Disposition on February 21,
2024. On March 4, 2024, the Company filed a Reply in Support of its Motion for Summary Disposition. On February 18, 2025, the Company
submitted a request for expediting the resolution of the administrative proceeding. The Commission will issue a decision on the basis of the record in
the proceeding. The Company cannot at this time predict the timing of a decision by the Commission or the outcome of such decision. The Company
intends to remain current in its periodic reporting to the SEC. In addition, the Company intends to vigorously defend against the allegations in the
Order to avoid possible suspension or revocation of the registration of its common stock. If the SEC issues a final order to suspend or revoke the
registration of the Company’s common stock, brokers, dealers and other market participants would be prohibited from buying, selling, making a
market in, publishing quotations of, or otherwise effecting transactions with respect to, such common stock until, in the case of suspension, the
lifting of such suspension, or, in the case of a revocation, the Company files a new registration statement with the SEC under the Exchange Act and
that registration statement is declared effective. As a result, public trading of the Company’s common stock would cease and investors would find it
extraordinarily difficult to acquire or dispose of the Company’s common stock or obtain accurate price quotations for the Company’s common stock,
which could result in a significant decline in the value of the Company’s stock. In addition, the Company’s business may be adversely impacted,
including, without limitation, an adverse impact on the Company’s ability to issue stock to raise equity capital, engage in business combinations or
provide employee incentives.
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Potential for future errors in the application of accounting rules and pronouncements.

The completion of the audits of our financial statements involved significant review and analyses, including highly technical analyses of data and
business practices and the extraction of data from the SAP System. Given the complexity and scope of this process, and despite the extensive time,
effort and expense that went into it, additional accounting errors may in the future come to light in these or other areas that may result in future
restatements.

The staff of the SEC may review the periodic reports of the Company and may request amendments of financial information or other
disclosures.

Following its review of periodic reports (including, but not limited to, this Annual Report) filed with the SEC, the staff of the SEC may request that
the Company make changes to its reporting of financial information contained in such periodic reports, potentially requiring amendments to our
financial information or other disclosure. Although not requested by the SEC staff, on April 22, 2024, the Company filed an amendment to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022 in response to certain observations made by the SEC staff in connection with
the Section 12(j) administrative proceeding.

Any further amendments to the financial information of the Company, among other things:
e would distract management’s attention from our business and operations;

e may require the Company to suspend the exercise of options by employees until it becomes current again in its periodic reporting obligations
under the federal securities laws;

e would result in incurring substantial additional professional expenses;
e may adversely affect the Company’s reputation, credibility with customers and investors and its ability to raise capital; and
e may subject the Company to the risk of additional litigation and regulatory investigations and actions.

The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, divert management’s attention and affect its ability to attract and retain
qualified board members.

As a public company listed in the U.S., we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and any rules
promulgated thereunder. Our management team may not successfully or efficiently manage being a public company that is subject to significant
regulatory oversight and reporting obligations under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities analysts and investors.
Operating a public company requires significant attention from our senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day
management of our business, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. For example, the requirements of these
rules and regulations may increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly, and
increase demand on our systems and resources. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls
and procedures and internal controls for financial reporting. In order to maintain and improve our disclosure controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight is required and, as a result, management’s
attention may be diverted from other business concerns. The costs of compliance with public company reporting requirements and our potential
failure to satisfy these requirements could have a material adverse effect on our operations, business, financial condition or results of operations.

In order to satisfy our obligations as a public company, we must hire, retain and train qualified accounting and financial personnel with
appropriate public company experience. Failure to do so may result in increased costs and additional risks in connection with the quality of our
financial reporting.

As a public company, we need to establish and maintain effective disclosure and financial controls and adhere to certain corporate governance
practices. We need to hire, retain and train accounting and financial personnel with appropriate public company experience and technical accounting
knowledge, and it may be difficult to recruit and retain such personnel. Even if we are able to hire appropriate personnel, our existing operating
expenses and operations will be impacted by the direct costs of their employment and the indirect consequences related to the diversion of
management resources from other business concerns.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK

Our stock price is volatile and could decline; there is currently a limited trading market for our common stock and we cannot predict how liquid
the market might become.

There has been a limited trading market for our common stock and we cannot predict how liquid the market for our common stock might become.
On September 28, 2021 our stock began trading in accordance with the OTC Pink Sheet Current Information tier. Broker dealer firms are not able to
provide stock quotes for IEH’s common stock and transactions are limited to the “Expert” market. The quotation of our common stock on the

OTC Pink Sheet Current Information does not assure that a meaningful, consistent and liquid trading market exists. The market price for our
common stock is subject to volatility and holders of our common stock may be unable to resell their shares at or near their original purchase price, or
at any price. In the absence of an active trading market, investors may have difficulty buying and selling, or obtaining market quotations for our
common stock; market visibility for our common stock may be limited; and a lack of visibility for our common stock may have a depressive effect
on the market for our common stock. While we intend to regain listing on an actively traded platform, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful.

The price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile. For example, our stock price during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2025 traded as low as $5.20 and as high as $16.00 per share and during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, our stock price traded as low as
$5.20 per share and as high as $10.00 per share. Fluctuations may be exaggerated since the trading volume is and would likely be volatile, limited,
and sporadic. These fluctuations may or may not be based upon any business or operating results. We cannot assure you that your investment in our
common stock will not decline.

Except for a single dividend declared and paid in 2017, we have not paid dividends in the past and do not expect to pay dividends in the future.
Any return on investment may be limited to the value of our common stock.

Except for a single dividend declared and paid in 2017, we have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate doing so in
the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends on our common stock will depend on earnings, financial condition and other business and
economic factors affecting us at such time as our Board of Directors may consider relevant. If we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be
less valuable because a return on your investment will only occur if our stock price appreciates.

The Offerman family has substantial influence over our management and policies, and their interests may conflict with ours or yours in the
future.

Gail Offerman and Dave Offerman, our Chief Executive Officer, (the “Offerman Investors”) beneficially own approximately 46.4% of our common
stock as of June 12, 2025, and will generally vote together as a single class on matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders. As a result, the
Offerman Investors may exert substantial influence on other actions requiring a shareholder vote, potentially in a manner that you do not support,
including the election and removal of directors and the approval of any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. In
addition, the ownership of such shareholders could preclude any unsolicited acquisition of us, and consequently, adversely affect the price of our
common stock. In addition, the Offerman Investors exercise significant influence over the operations of our Company because the Company has
been a business led by the Offerman family for generations. These shareholders may make decisions that are adverse to your interests.
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We have reduced disclosure and governance requirements applicable to smaller reporting companies, which could result in our common stock
being less attractive to investors.

We have a public float of less than $250 million and therefore qualify as a smaller reporting company under the rules of the SEC. As a smaller
reporting company, we are able to take advantage of reduced disclosure requirements, such as simplified executive compensation disclosures,
exemption from the provisions of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requiring that our independent registered public accounting firm provide
an attestation report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and reduced financial statement disclosure requirements in our
SEC filings. Decreased disclosures in our SEC filings due to our status as a smaller reporting company may make it harder for our investors to
analyze our results of operations and financial prospects. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive due to our
reliance on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our
common stock and our stock price may be volatile.

There are risks related to the implementation of our perpetual accounting system.

Since 2020, we have been operating on a new perpetual accounting system, SAP’s Business One system along with an add-on inventory and
production module, Beas Manufacturing (“SAP System”) in order to improve our financial reporting. Since implementation, we have been engaged
in a multi-year process to refine the functionality of the SAP System, most significantly around the accounting for inventory and costs of products
sold. We have identified the causes of the errors that led to the restatement of previously reported financials and have made enhancements to the
SAP System to remediate those causes. There remains further work to improve and optimize the SAP System, and that work is ongoing. Any
deficiency in further re-design of the SAP System could negatively impact the quality of our financial data and may result in inaccurate financials or
delays in our periodic reports with the SEC, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Risks Related to General Economic Conditions and Other Factors:

Changes in general economic conditions, geopolitical conditions, U.S. trade policies and other factors beyond the Company’s control may
adversely impact our business and operating results.

The Company’s operations and performance depend significantly on global, regional and U.S. economic and geopolitical conditions. The United
States has from time to time experienced challenging economic conditions, including in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, and the global
financial markets have recently undergone and may continue to experience significant volatility and disruption. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be materially adversely affected by changes in consumer confidence, levels of unemployment, inflation, interest rates,
tax rates and general uncertainty regarding the overall future economic environment. A recession or slowdown in the economy may cause a decline
in demand for our products and have a negative impact on our business.

We are also impacted by changes in trade policy. We have observed significant shifts in U.S. trade policy, with increased tariffs and the imposition of
new tariffs that could impact our supply chain and our business. While imposition of certain tariffs have been temporarily paused, it is hard to
predict the direction of future trade policy. Changes to current policies by the U.S. or other governments could affect our business, including
potentially through increased import tariffs and other influences on U.S. trade relations with other countries. The imposition of additional tariffs or
other trade barriers could increase our costs in certain markets, and may cause our customers to find alternative sourcing. In addition, other countries
may change their own policies on business and foreign investment in companies in their respective countries. Additionally, it is possible that U.S.
policy changes and uncertainty about such changes could increase market volatility and currency exchange rate fluctuations. Market volatility and
currency exchange rate fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. As
a result of these dynamics, we cannot predict the impact to our business of any future changes to the U.S.’s trading relationships.
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A number of other economic and geopolitical factors both in the United States and abroad could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, such as:

a global or regional economic slowdown in any of the Company’s market segments;
postponement of spending, in response to tighter credit, financial market volatility and other factors;

effects of significant changes in economic, monetary and fiscal policies in the United States and abroad including significant income tax
changes, currency fluctuations and inflationary pressures;

rapid material escalation of the cost of regulatory compliance and litigation;

changes in government policies and regulations affecting the Company or its significant customers or suppliers;

employment regulations and local labor conditions, including increases in employment costs;

industrial policies in various countries that favor domestic industries over multinationals or that restrict foreign companies altogether;

longer payment cycles;

credit risks and other challenges in collecting accounts receivable; and

ongoing conflicts in Eastern Europe and the Middle East have impacted economic activity as well as the availability and price of raw materials

and energy and the most recent conflict between two nuclear powers in South Asia since May 2025, the effect of which on world markets is still
to be determined.
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The global nature of our operations exposes us to numerous risks that could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

We serve customers in the United States and abroad, with a sales presence in over 40 countries. Sales outside of the United States are subject to
various risks that may not be present or as significant for our U.S. operations. Economic uncertainty in some of the geographic regions in which we
sell our products could result in the disruption of commerce and negatively impact cash flows from our operations in those areas. Risks inherent in
our international operations include, among others:

e Pandemic-related uncertainties in the countries in which we operate;

e Import and export regulations that could erode profit margins or restrict exports;

e Foreign exchange controls and tax rates;

e Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, including devaluations;

e Changes in regional and local economic conditions, including local inflationary pressures;

e Difficulty of enforcing agreements and collecting receivables through certain foreign legal systems;

e Variations in protection of intellectual property and other legal rights;

e [Inability or regulatory limitations on our ability to move goods across borders;

e Changes in laws and regulations, including the laws and policies of the United States affecting trade, tariffs and foreign investment;

e Restrictive governmental actions such as those on transfer or repatriation of funds and trade protection matters, including antidumping duties,
tariffs, trade wars, embargoes and prohibitions or restrictions on acquisitions or joint ventures;

o  Unsettled political conditions and possible terrorist attacks against U.S. or other interests; and
e Political tensions and armed conflict, such as the ongoing wars in Eastern Europe, Middle East and the conflict in South Asia.

If we are unable to anticipate and effectively manage these and other risks, it could have a material and adverse effect on our business, our results of
operations and financial condition.

We are the primary source for various commercial and aerospace applications in certain parts of Asia and Europe. There is always a risk of
being second sourced by domestic manufacturers, and trade tensions or nationalizing supply chains adversely impacting our business.

Sales to customers located outside the U.S. accounted for approximately 5.7% and 8.5% of our revenue in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and
2024, respectively. Any weakness in the domestic economy could result in a decrease in demand for consumer products that contain our products,
which could materially and adversely affect our business. In addition, there is a risk that manufacturers in Asia and Europe may compete with us and
replace us. The imposition by the U.S. of tariffs on goods imported from overseas, countermeasures imposed in response, U.S. export restrictions

on sales of products to certain overseas countries and other government actions that restrict or otherwise adversely affect our ability to sell our
products may have a material adverse impact on our business. In addition, we may be subject to rules and regulations or the jurisdiction of other
governmental agencies that may adversely affect our rights and obligations. In the event of a dispute, we will likely be subject to the exclusive
jurisdiction of foreign courts.
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Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely affect our business and the value of our securities.

The value of our securities will be indirectly affected by the foreign exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and other currencies in which our sales
may be denominated. Appreciation or depreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to these foreign currencies would affect our financial
results reported in U.S. dollar terms without giving effect to any underlying change in our business or results of operations.

To date, we have not entered into any hedging transactions. While we may enter into hedging transactions in the future, the availability and
effectiveness of these transactions may be limited, and we may not be able to successfully hedge our exposure at all.

Changes in defense expenditures may reduce the Company’s sales.

Approximately 65.7% and 60.6% of the Company’s net revenues for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, came from sales
to the defense market. The Company participates in a broad spectrum of defense programs. Accordingly, the Company’s sales are affected by
changes in the defense budgets and policies of the U.S. government. A significant decline in U.S. government defense expenditures for programs in
which we participate could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. U.S. government
expenditures are also subject to political and budgetary fluctuations and constraints, which may result in significant unexpected changes in levels of
demand for our products.

We may be adversely affected by natural disasters, pandemics and other catastrophic events and by man-made problems such as terrorism that
could disrupt our business operations, and our business continuity and disaster recovery plans may not adequately protect us from a serious
disaster.

Our business operations are located in Brooklyn, New York and Allentown, Pennsylvania. If a disaster, power outage, computer hacking, or other
event occurred that prevented us from using all or a significant portion of our facilities, that damaged critical infrastructure, such as enterprise
financial systems, IT systems, manufacturing resource planning or enterprise quality systems, or that otherwise disrupted operations, it may be
difficult or, in certain cases, impossible for us to continue our business for a substantial period of time. In addition, our suppliers’ facilities are
located in locations susceptible to natural disasters or similar events, such as tornadoes, fires, explosions or large-scale accidents or power outages,
or IT threats, pandemics, acts of terrorism and other geo-political unrest, which could severely disrupt our operations and have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects. All of the aforementioned risks may be further increased if we do not
implement a disaster recovery plan or our partners’ or manufacturers’ disaster recovery plans prove to be inadequate. To the extent that any of the
above should result in delays in the manufacture or distribution of our products, our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects
would suffer.

Our business and operations would suffer in the event of system failures, cyber-attacks or a deficiency in our cyber-security.

Despite the implementation of security measures, our internal computer systems and those of our contractors and consultants are vulnerable to
damage from computer viruses, unauthorized access, natural disasters, terrorism, war, artificial intelligence related cyber-attacks, and
telecommunication and electrical failures. The risk of a security breach or disruption, particularly through cyber-attacks or cyber-intrusion, including
by computer hackers, foreign governments, and cyber-terrorists, has generally increased as the number, intensity and sophistication of attempted
attacks and intrusions from around the world have increased. If such an event were to occur and cause interruptions in our operations, it could result
in a material disruption of our development programs and our business operations.
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Item 1B.

Item 1C.

Unresolved Staff Comments:
Not Applicable.

Cyber Security

All companies utilizing technology are subject to the risk of breaches of or unauthorized access to their computer systems. The Company maintains
a cyber risk management program designed to identify, assess, manage, mitigate, and respond to cybersecurity threats. The Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors and our management are actively involved in the oversight of our risk management program, of which cybersecurity represents
an important component. We have established policies, standards, processes and practices for assessing, identifying, and managing material risks
from cybersecurity threats and incidents. Our policies, processes and procedures include, among other things, external penetration testing using an
experienced third-party company conducted every three years; a cybersecurity incident response and recovery plan; periodic and ongoing security
awareness training for employees; the use of several comprehensive vulnerability analysis systems to evaluate software vulnerabilities both
internally and externally; and mechanisms to detect and monitor unusual network activity. The Company also requires that all third-party vendors
that have access to or handle sensitive information undergo a risk-based vendor security assessment. We also maintain controls and procedures that
are designed to promptly escalate certain cybersecurity incidents so that decisions regarding public disclosure and reporting of such incidents can be
made by management and our Board of Directors in a timely manner. There can be no guarantee that our policies and procedures will be properly
followed in every instance or that those policies and procedures will be effective.

Our cyber risk management program is based on recognized best practices and standards for cybersecurity and information technology, including
the National Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework. Our cybersecurity risks are identified and addressed through a
comprehensive, cross- functional approach. The Company’s Vice President of Engineering is primarily responsible for the implementation of
defense capabilities and risk mitigation strategies in connection with the Company’s information security and cybersecurity risks. The Company’s
Vice President of Engineering, in coordination with the Company’s senior management, works collaboratively across the Company to implement
the cyber risk management program. To facilitate the success of the Company’s cybersecurity program, cross-functional teams throughout the
Company address cybersecurity threats and respond to cybersecurity incidents. Through ongoing communications with these teams, the Company’s
Vice President of Engineering and senior management are informed about and monitor the prevention, detection, mitigation and remediation of

cybersecurity threats and incidents in real time, and report such threats and incidents to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors when
appropriate.

Our Audit Committee takes the lead on behalf of our Board of Directors in monitoring risk management, which includes overseeing the Company’s
management of its cybersecurity and data privacy. The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis with our Vice President of Engineering, General
Counsel and Chief Financial Officer, who provide quarterly reports concerning the Company’s information security and cybersecurity risks.

Although we have not been materially impacted by any cybersecurity incident to date, we are subject to cybersecurity threats, as discussed in Item

1A. Risk Factors, including in the risk factor entitled “Our business and operations would suffer in the event of system failures, cyber-attacks or a
deficiency in our cyber-security.”
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Item 2.

Item 3.

Item 4.

Properties:

The Company renewed its lease for its manufacturing facility located at 140 sgth Street, Suite 8E, Brooklyn, New York on December 1, 2020, and
entered into a 10-year lease agreement extension, running through November 30, 2030. The lease is approximately 20,400 square feet of space, of
which it is estimated that 6,000 square feet are used as executive, sales and administrative offices and 14,400 square feet are used for its
manufacturing, testing and plating operations. The basic minimum annual rental payments remaining on this lease is $1,792,755 as of March 31,
2025.

The Company entered into a lease on January 29, 2021 for a building at 200 Cascade Drive, Bldg. 2, Suite H, Allentown, Pennsylvania 18109
running through March 30, 2028. The lease is approximately 28,800 square feet of space, of which it is estimated that 4,800 square feet are used as
executive and administrative offices and 24,000 square feet are used for its manufacturing and testing operations. The basic minimum annual rental
payments remaining on this lease is $807,969 as of March 31, 2025.

Legal Proceedings:

There are no legal proceedings that have occurred within the past year concerning our directors, or control persons which involved a criminal
conviction, a criminal proceeding, an administrative or civil proceeding limiting one’s participation in the securities or banking industries, or a
finding of securities or commodities law violations.

On August 17, 2022, the SEC issued an Order Instituting Administrative Proceedings and Notice of Hearing pursuant to Section 12(j) of the
Exchange Act. The stated purpose of the administrative proceeding is for the Commission to determine whether it is necessary and appropriate for
the protection of investors to suspend for a period not exceeding twelve months, or revoke the registration of each class of securities of the Company
registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act. The Company filed an answer to the Order on October 3, 2022 and on October 13, 2022 we
conducted a prehearing conference with SEC staff in the Division of Enforcement. On March 1, 2023 the SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed a
Motion for Summary Disposition, on March 15, 2023, IEH filed an opposition brief to the SEC Division of Enforcement’s Motion for Summary
Disposition, and on March 29, 2023, the SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed a Reply in Support of its Motion for Summary Disposition. On
December 22, 2023, the Company filed a Cross-Motion for Summary Disposition. The SEC’s Division of Enforcement filed an opposition to the
Company’s Cross-Motion for Summary Disposition on February 21, 2024. On March 4, 2024, the Company filed a Reply in Support of its Motion
for Summary Disposition. The SEC will issue a decision on the basis of the record in the proceeding. On February 18, 2025, the Company submitted
a request for expediting the resolution of the administrative proceeding.

On March 19, 2024, William H. Craig, the former Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, filed a lawsuit against the Company in the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York related to Mr. Craig’s resignation as an executive officer of the Company. On November 5,
2024, Mr. Craig and the Company executed a final settlement agreement for all claims against the Company. The terms of the settlement are
confidential. Neither the litigation nor its resolution had any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.

Mine Safety Disclosures:

Not applicable.
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Item 5.

IEH CORPORATION
PART 1I

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:
Principal Market:

Beginning on September 28, 2021, as a result of the SEC’s amendments to Exchange Act Rule 15¢2-11 which requires listed companies to be
current in their SEC periodic reports or provide alternative information, trading in the Company’s shares of common stock is in accordance with the
OTC Pink Sheet Current Information tier and transactions are limited to the “Expert” market. As a result, broker dealer firms are not able to provide
stock quotes for the Company’s common stock. Persons who hold our common stock or wish to purchase our common stock will have to contact
their brokers directly in order to buy or sell shares. Prior to September 28, 2021, commencing on March 22, 2019, the Company’s shares of common
stock (the “common stock”) commenced trading exclusively on the OTCQX Marketplace. Prior to March 22, 2019, the common stock was traded
exclusively on the OTCQB Marketplace commencing on March 17, 2017. The shares are quoted under the ticker symbol “IEHC”. Investors are able
to view real-time quotes at http://www.otcmarkets.com. Because we are currently quoted on the OTC Pink Sheet Current Information, our common
stock may be less liquid, receive less coverage by security analysts and news media, and generate lower prices than might otherwise be obtained if it
were listed on a national securities exchange.

Market Information:
The range of high and low bid prices for the Company’s common stock, for the periods indicated, are set forth below as reported by the OTC

Markets. The table below provides the high and low bid prices of the common stock during the periods indicated. These prices represent quotations
between dealers without adjustment for retail mark-up, markdown or commission and may not represent actual transactions.

High Bid Low Bid

Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2024

April 1, 2023 — June 30, 2023 $ 720 $ 5.75

July 1, 2023 — September 30, 2023 $ 8.65 § 7.25

October 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023 $ 10.00 $ 7.60

January 1, 2024 — March 31, 2024 $ 785 § 5.20
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2025

April 1, 2024 — June 30, 2024 $ 9.50 $ 5.20

July 1, 2024 — September 30, 2024 $ 990 3 6.50

October 1, 2024 — December 31, 2024 $ 16.00 $ 7.95

January 1, 2025 — March 31, 2025 $ 1125  $ 7.30

Holders:

The number of record holders of the Company’s common stock as of June 12, 2025 was 151. Such number of record owners was determined from
the Company’s shareholder records, and does not include the beneficial owners of the Company’s common stock whose shares are held in the names
of various security holders, dealers and clearing agencies.

Dividends:
Except for a single cash dividend declared and paid in 2017, we have never declared or paid a regular, quarterly cash dividend on our common stock,
and we do not expect to pay any regular, quarterly cash dividend on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Payment of future dividends, if any,

on our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account various factors, including our financial condition,
operating results, anticipated cash needs, and plans for expansion.
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Item 6.

Item 7.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans:

Information regarding the Company’s equity compensation plans and the securities authorized for issuance thereunder is set forth herein under Part
111, Item 12 below.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities:

None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:

None

[Reserved]

Not Applicable.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations:

Statements contained in this report, which are not historical facts, may be considered forward-looking information with respect to plans, projections,
or future performance of the Company as defined under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are

subject to risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. The words “anticipate”, “believe”,

“estimate”, “expect”, “objective”, and “think” or similar expressions used herein are intended to identify forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements are based on the Company s current views and assumptions and involve risks and uncertainties that include, among
other things, the performance of the Company s business, actions of competitors, changes in laws and regulations, including accounting standards,
employee relations, customer demand, prices of purchased raw materials and parts, domestic economic conditions, and foreign economic

conditions, including currency rate fluctuations.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and related footnotes included elsewhere
in this report, which provide additional information concerning the Company s financial activities and condition.

Overview of Business:
The Company designs, develops and manufactures printed circuit board connectors and custom interconnects for high performance applications.

All of our connectors utilize the Hyperboloid contact design, a rugged, high-reliability contact system ideally suited for high-stress environments.
We believe we are the only independent producer of Hyperboloid printed circuit board connectors in the United States.

Our customers consist of OEMs and distributors who resell our products to OEMs. We sell our products directly and through 21 independent sales
representatives and distributors located in all regions of the United States, Canada, the European Union, Southeast Asia, Central Asia and the Middle
East.

The customers we service are in the defense, aerospace, space, medical, oil and gas, industrial, test equipment and commercial electronics markets.

We appear on the Military DLA Qualified Product Listing (“QPL”) MIL-DTL-55302 and supply customer requested modifications to this
specification.
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The customers we service by industry as a percentage of total revenue is provided below:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Industry % %
Defense 65.7 60.6
Commercial Aerospace 19.9 27.3
Space 10.6 7.8
Other 3.8 43

We are exposed to and impacted by macroeconomic factors and U.S., state and local government policies. Current general economic conditions,
including the current levels of inflation and increased tariffs, have created uncertainties, resulting in market volatility. We have adopted particular
measures to protect our employees at our manufacturing operations in Brooklyn, New York, and Allentown, Pennsylvania, and we expect to execute
on our contracts through carefully designed arrangements.

Worldwide Supply Chain Disruptions

Worldwide supply chain disruptions, which were initially brought about by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, have persisted despite the
recovery in the global economy and financial markets. The Company has experienced longer lead times for raw materials and has experienced raw
material cost increases compared to prior fiscal years. These and other issues resulting from worldwide supply chain disruptions, including tariffs
and the impact of trade policies from the current United States government administration, as well as the conflicts in Eastern Europe, the Middle
East and South Asia, are expected to continue into fiscal 2026 and could continue to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition. The precise financial impact and duration, however, cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Future events and their effects cannot be determined with
absolute certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment. Actual results inevitably will differ from those
estimates, and such differences may be material to the financial statements. The most significant accounting estimates inherent in the preparation of
our financial statements include estimates associated with revenue recognition, valuation of inventories, accounting for income taxes and stock-
based compensation expense.

Our financial position, results of operations and cash flows are impacted by the accounting policies we have adopted. In order to get a full
understanding of our financial statements, one must have a clear understanding of the accounting policies employed. A summary of our critical
accounting policies is presented within the footnotes to the financial statements presented within this Annual Report.

Revenue Recognition

Pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” revenue represents the amount
received or receivable for goods and services supplied by the Company to its customers. We recognize revenue and the related cost of products sold
when the performance obligations are satisfied. The performance obligations are typically satisfied upon shipment of physical goods. In addition to
the satisfaction of the performance obligations, the following conditions are required for revenue recognition: an arrangement exists, there is a fixed
price, and collectability is reasonably assured.
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We do not offer any discounts, credits or other sales incentives. Historically, the Company believes that it has had no collection issues with its
customer base. The Company’s policy with respect to customer returns and allowances as well as product warranty is as follows:

We may accept a return of defective product within one year from shipment for repair or replacement at the Company’s option. If the product is
repairable, the Company at its own cost, will repair and return it to the customer. If unrepairable, the Company, at its own expense, will replace the
defective product with a new item. The cost of defective products is immaterial at this time. Billing terms vary by customer and product but
generally do not exceed 30 days.

We provide engineering services as part of the relationship with its customers in developing the custom product. We are not obligated to provide
such engineering service to its customers. We do not invoice its customers separately for these services.

We record a liability when receiving cash in advance of delivering goods or services to the customer. This liability is offset against the receivable
recognized when those goods or services are delivered. Deposits from customers were $173,074 and $882,525, as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

Valuation of Inventories

Raw materials are stated at the average cost on a first-in first-out basis which does not exceed net realizable value. Finished goods and work in
process are valued at the lower of actual cost, determined on a specific identification basis, or the net realizable value of each product. The Company
estimates which materials may be obsolete and which products in work in process or finished goods may be sold at less than cost, and adjusts their
inventory value accordingly.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Our current provision for income taxes is based upon its estimated taxable income in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates, after considering
the impact on taxable income of temporary and permanent differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and any operating loss or tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income in those
periods in which temporary differences become deductible. Should management determine that it is more likely than not that some portion of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets would be established in the period such determination
was made.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in the Statement of Operations over the vesting term of the equity-based award. We chose the
straight-line method of allocating compensation cost over the requisite service period of the related award in accordance with the authoritative
guidance. When the terms of an equity-based award provide for immediate vesting, the fair value of the equity-based award is expensed
immediately. The expected term of options granted to employees is calculated using the simplified method, which represents the average of the
contractual term of the option and the weighted-average vesting period of the option, which, for options granted in fiscal 2025 and 2024, resulted in
an expected term of approximately five years. We used our historical volatility to estimate expected volatility in fiscal 2025 and 2024. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yields in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding to the expected life of the options. The
dividend yield is 0% based on the fact that we have no present intention to pay dividends. Determining some of these assumptions requires
significant judgment and changes to these assumptions could result in a significant change to the calculation of stock-based compensation in future
periods.
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Results of Operations:
Annual Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2025:

Revenue $

Operating expenses:
Cost of products sold
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Other income (expense):
Interest income (expense), net

Total other income (expense), net

Income (loss) before (provision for) benefit from income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

Net income (loss) $

For the Fiscal Years Ended Period-to-
March 31, Period
2025 2024 Change
28,783,861 § 21,524,544 § 7,259,317
21,309,983 18,257,621 3,052,362
6,154,214 6,156,191 (1,977)
744,802 871,619 (126,817)
28,208,999 25,285,431 2,923,568
574,862 (3,760,887) 4,335,749
425,291 126,694 298,597
425,291 126,694 298,597
1,000,153 (3,634,193) 4,634,346
(1,115) 717,291 (718,406)
999,038 $ (2,916,902) $ 3,915,940

Revenue for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was $28,783,861, reflecting an increase of $7,259,317, or 33.7%, as compared to $21,524,544 for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The increase in revenues was primarily due to an increase in orders from our defense customers for programs
that IEH participates in. Fiscal 2025 also witnessed increases in revenue in commercial space exploration as space related programs continue to
evolve and grow, offsetting the decline in revenue from commercial aerospace as the industry navigates through various production, labor and

regulatory related challenges related to a major airplane producer.

Cost of products sold for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was $21,309,983 reflecting an increase of $3,052,362, or 16.7%, as compared to
$18,257,621 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The increase was principally attributable to increase in revenue offset by more effective

absorption of overhead in production on account of increases in unit volume sold.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was $6,154,214, reflecting a decrease of $1,977, as compared

to $6,156,191 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024.

Depreciation and amortization for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was $744,802, reflecting a decrease of $126,817, or 14.6%, as compared to
$871,619 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The decrease was principally attributable to reduced amortization in the current period for
certain fully amortized assets as we continue to monitor and manage fixed assets investments closely.

Total interest income (expense), net for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was $425,291, reflecting an increase of $298,597, as compared to
$126,694 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in interest income earned on taxes prepaid

for federal, state and municipal jurisdictions.

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was a provision of $1,115, as compared to a benefit of $717,291 for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The provision for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was due to a federal provision of $64,300, offset by an

adjustment of $63,185 for state and local income taxes.

The benefit for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 was principally attributable to adjustments to prior years’ federal, state and local income taxes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources:

Our primary requirements for liquidity and capital are working capital, inventory, capital expenditures, public company costs and general corporate
needs. We expect these needs to continue as we further develop and grow our business. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, our primary
sources of liquidity came from cash flows generated by operating activities and cash reserves. Based on our current plans and business conditions,
we believe that existing cash, together with cash generated from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated cash requirements in fiscal
year 2026 and into fiscal year 2027, and we are not aware of any trends or demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are reasonably likely
to result in a decrease in liquidity of our assets. We may require additional capital to respond to technological advancements, competitive dynamics
or technologies, business opportunities, challenges, acquisitions or unforeseen circumstances and in either the short-term or long-term may
determine to engage in equity or debt financings or enter into credit facilities for other reasons. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or
financing on terms satisfactory to us, when we require it, our ability to continue to grow or support our business and to respond to business
challenges could be significantly limited. In particular, inflationary pressures and the conflicts in Eastern Europe, Middle East and South Asia, and
any economic uncertainty as a result of the change in presidential administration in the U.S. may result in significant disruption and volatility in the
global financial markets, reducing our ability to access capital have resulted in, and may continue to result in, significant disruption and volatility in
the global financial markets, reducing our ability to access capital. If we are unable to raise additional funds when or on the terms desired, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

As of March 31, 2025, our cash balance was $10,539,828. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, we recorded net income of $999,038. As of
March 31, 2025, we had working capital of $19,784,214.

Our principal source of liquidity is cash flows generated by operating activities and cash reserves.
Cash Flow Activities for the Year Ended March 31, 2025 Compared to the Year Ended March 31, 2024

The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

For the Fiscal Years Ended Period-to-
March 31, Period
2025 2024 Change
Cash flow provided by (used in)
Operating activities $ 4,883,619 $ (1,914,265) $ 6,797,884
Investing activities (532,364) (347,168) (185,196)
Financing activities 48,750 56,550 (7,300)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 4,400,005 $ (2,204,883) $ 6,604,888

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4,883,619 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, as compared to net cash used in operating
activities of $1,914,265 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The period over period improvement in cash from operating activities of
$6,797,884 was primarily due to the improvement in net income of $3,915,940, decrease in inventory purchases of $1,154,803, decrease in accounts
receivable of $1,624,952, decrease in corporate tax receivable of $1,861,462, offset by the decrease in customer advance payments of $1,571,337.

Net cash used in investing activities was $532,364 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, an increase of $185,196, as compared to use of
$347,168 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The increase in cash used in investing activities during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 was
primarily attributable to investment in machinery for product designs.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $48,750 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, a decrease of $7,800, as compared to $56,550 for

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. This decrease is attributable to a reduction in the proceeds from the exercise of stock options.
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Item 7A.

Item 8.

Item 9.

Item 9A.

Backlog of Orders

Our customers typically enter into supply arrangements for the purchase of our products which we will produce and deliver over time. On an as-
needed basis, our customers place specific production orders, and these orders are generally filled and shipped within twelve weeks. Our backlog
consists of supply arrangements where the anticipated unfulfilled shipping dates are within approximately twelve months. Because of the possibility
of customer changes in delivery schedules or the cancellation of orders, our backlog as of any particular date may not be indicative of revenue in any
future period. The backlog amounted to approximately $12,445,000 at March 31, 2025 as compared to $18,285,600 at March 31, 2024. The decrease
in total backlog as of March 31, 2025 compared with the previous year is primarily due to decreases in defense orders as the company awaits several
key customer contracts to be executed and due to sluggish recovery in commercial aerospace as the industry navigates through production, labor and
regulatory issues related to a major airplane producer.

A portion of these backlog orders are subject to cancellation or postponement of delivery dates and, therefore, no assurance can be given that actual
sales will result from these orders. The Company does not foresee any problems which would prevent it from fulfilling these orders.

Inflation

In the opinion of management, inflation has continued to impact the costs of our operations and depending upon the current duration and degree of
higher inflation levels, is expected to have an impact upon our operations in the future. Management will continue to monitor inflation and evaluate
the possible future effects of inflation on our business and operations.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not required.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See our audited Financial Statements for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 which follow Item 16 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in paragraph (e) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act) designed to
ensure that the information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified under the rules and forms of the SEC. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. As required by paragraph
(b) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, our Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer) and our Chief Financial
Officer (our principal financial officer) carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of March 31, 2025.

Management has used the framework set forth in the report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework published by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), known as COSO, to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting. The following material weakness has been identified:

The Company has not established an effective control environment due to the ineffective design and implementation of Information Technology
General Controls (“ITGC”). The Company’s ITGC deficiencies included improperly designed controls pertaining to change management and user
access rights over systems that are critical to the Company’s system of financial reporting. The ITGC deficiencies, combined with a lack of properly
designed management review controls to compensate for these deficiencies, represent a material weakness in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

As of March 31, 2025, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our internal over financial reporting and
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective based upon the identified material weakness noted above.

Management is actively engaged in the planning for and implementation of remediation efforts to address the identified material weakness. The

remediation plan includes improvements in the design and implementation of enhanced monitoring and user access and change management within
the ITGC environment.
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Item 9B.

Item 9C.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of,
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving their objectives. Internal control over financial reporting is a
process that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgement and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Due to
their inherent limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over
financial reporting. It is possible to design safeguards to reduce, but not eliminate, this risk. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for our company.

Mitigation Step

In order to address the material weakness stated above, Management undertook the following mitigation step:

e the implementation of improvements in the design and implementation of enhanced monitoring of ITGC controls;

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all misstatements or fraud. Any control system,
no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its
objectives will be met.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to SEC rules, which permit
us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or
internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all errors or all instances of fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)
identified in connection with the evaluation of our internal controls that occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2025 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.

Other Information

Insider Trading Arrangements and Policies

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement”
or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement”, as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.

Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections

Not Applicable.
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IEH CORPORATION
PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers and Directors

As of March 31, 2025, the executive officers and directors of the Company are as follows:

Name Age Office Class
David Offerman 50 Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer II
Subrata Purkayastha 43 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Allen Gottlieb 83 Director I
Gerald E. Chafetz 81 Director I
Eric C. Hugel 54 Director I
Michael E. Rosenfeld 41 Director I
John P. Spiezio 61 Director I
Brian J. Glenn 45 Director I

IEH’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that the directors of the Company are to be elected in two (2) classes; each class to be elected to a
staggered two (2) year term and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. As of March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors consisted of
seven (7) members divided into two classes with four Class I Members (Mr. Hugel, Mr. Spiezio, Mr. Rosenfeld and Mr. Glenn) and three Class I1
Members (Mr. Offerman, Mr. Gottlieb and Mr. Chafetz).

The Company currently has two executive officers: Mr. David Offerman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Ms. Subrata Purkayastha, the

Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer. All officers are selected by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

David Offerman. On March 26, 2017, Mr. Offerman was elected to the positions of Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer.
David succeeded his late father, Michael Offerman, who passed away on March 24, 2017. David Offerman has been a member of IEH’s Board of
Directors since July 15, 2016. Prior to March 24, 2017, he was the Vice President — Sales and Marketing of the Company. He joined the Company in
September 2004 as the National Sales Manager and was appointed to Vice President — Sales and Marketing in April 2011. Prior to joining IEH, Mr.
Offerman worked as an account executive and sales manager in the telecommunication industry.
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Mr. Offerman graduated from the University of Michigan in 1997 with a Bachelor of Arts in film and communications. In 2016, he received an
MBA from the NYU Stern School of Business with a concentration in leadership and management. We believe Mr. Offerman’s expertise in
manufacturing, sales and strategy along with his extensive experience, qualifications, attributes and skills make him well qualified to serve as a
director of our Company.

Subrata Purkayastha. On October 26, 2023, the Company promoted Subrata Purkayastha from interim Chief Financial Officer to permanent Chief
Financial Officer and executed a new employment agreement with her effective as of November 1, 2023. Previously, on May 19, 2023, the
Company appointed Subrata Purkayastha as its Interim Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Ms. Purkayastha’s appointment became effective on
May 19, 2023. Prior to this date, Ms. Purkayastha served as Controller of the Company since November 2021. Prior to joining the Company, from
January 2019 to May 2021, Ms. Purkayastha served as Controller of Sprouts Foods, Inc., a producer and distributor of premium organic foods
intended for babies and toddlers. From July 2017 to January 2019, Ms. Purkayastha served as Accounting Manager at Sprouts Foods, Inc. where she
provided timely and accurate financial reporting to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and private equity partners. Prior to
Sprout Foods Inc., from July 2015 to June 2017, Ms. Purkayastha served as Accounting Manager of Champions Oncology, Inc., a publicly-traded
company engaged in the development of advanced technology solutions and services to personalize the development of oncology drug development.
Ms. Purkayastha holds a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Carson-Newman University in Jefferson City, Tennessee and also received a
Master’s in Arts degree with a focus in International Banking and Finance from Fordham University. Ms. Purkayastha is also a Certified Public
Accountant.

Allen Gottlieb. Mr. Gottlieb has been a board member since 1992. He has a BS from NYU in Accounting and Finance, and an LL.B. and JD from
Brooklyn Law School. He currently operates his own firm specializing in Labor Relations and Human Resources consulting. He also has extensive
entrepreneurial experience in manufacturing, distribution, logistics, and hospitality, in both domestic and international markets. The Company
believes that his broad experience as well as his knowledge of IEH qualifies him to serve as a director of our Company.

Gerald Chafetz. Mr. Chafetz has been a member of the Company’s Board of Directors since 2009. He is President of GEC Enterprises, LLC since
2011. GEC Enterprises, LLC is a property management company headquartered in Boynton Beach, Florida. He was previously President of Capitol
City Companies. Prior to founding Capitol City Companies, he had an extended 22-year executive career in the textile industry with several
knitwear and high fashion manufacturers, including Arista Knitwear, Berwick Fashion Knitwear and Beged-or Knitwear. Mr. Chafetz graduated
from the University of Hartford in 1965 with a Bachelor of Science degree in business. We believe Mr. Chafetz’s expertise in executive management
and manufacturing along with his extensive experience, qualifications, attributes and skills make him well qualified to serve as a director of our
Company.

Eric C. Hugel, CPA, CFA. Eric C. Hugel has been a member of IEH’s Board of Directors since July 15, 2016. Since May 2023, he has served as
the Chief Financial Officer of Americraft Marine Group LLC, a company with the mission to support and strengthen the U.S. shipbuilding industry
and infrastructure. From July 2014 to May 2023, Mr. Hugel served as the Co-Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Hugel
Corporation, an online retailer. From March 2013 to February 2014, Mr. Hugel held the position of Senior Institutional Specialist in U.S.
Fundamental Equity Research Analyst at McGraw Hill Financial — S&P Capital 1Q providing investment advisory services. In particular he provided
research and analysis in the U.S. aerospace and defense and industrial conglomerates sectors. From July 2002 through June 2012 he was a managing
director at Stephens Inc. providing investment research and analytical services in the U.S. aerospace and defenses sectors. Mr. Hugel graduated from
Lehigh University in 1993 with a Bachelor of Science in accounting. We believe Mr. Hugel’s expertise in manufacturing in the aerospace industry
and finance along with his extensive experience, qualifications, attributes and skills make him well qualified to serve as a director of our Company.
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Michael E. Rosenfeld has been a member of the Company’s Board of Directors since 2018. He is a co-founder, Principal, and Chief Operating
Officer at Olive Tree Holdings, a real estate investment firm headquartered in New York City specializing in the acquisition, management and
transformation of multifamily communities across dynamically growing markets within the U.S. To date, the firm has amassed a lifetime portfolio
value of $2 billion and has acquired and transformed over 17,000 units of workforce and affordable housing units across 9 states. During his tenure,
the firm raised over $465 million of outside equity and was one of the fastest growing multifamily owners in the nation. Previously, Michael worked
for 11 years as the Chief of Staff to the Founder/Chairman of a private family investment office with a $360 million commercial real estate portfolio
comprised of over 1.5 million square feet from New York to Miami Beach. Mr. Rosenfeld received his Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from
Emory University in 2006, and his Master of Business Administration (MBA) in Corporate Finance from the New York University Stern School of
Business in 2016. We believe Mr. Rosenfeld’s expertise in finance and accounting along with his extensive experience, qualifications, attributes and
skills make him well qualified to serve as a director of our Company.

John P. Spiezio, appointed to the Board of Directors on August 1, 2023, has extensive experience in the aerospace and defense industries. After
studying Economics, Computer Science, and Mathematics at Marquette University, he returned to New York and began his 33-year career as the
third-generation leader at Hicksville Machine Works, Inc. (“HMW?), a supplier to prime aerospace & defense contractors throughout North America
and Europe as well as the Department of Defense directly. Over that time he gained extensive experience in operations, business development, and
governance of a business operating in this specialized industry. After HMW was sold in 2019, Mr. Spiezio worked, from March 2019 to April 2021,
for a private equity firm engaged in building a vertically integrated company that could produce and supply entire integrated systems to the
aerospace and defense industries. Mr. Spiezio serves on the corporate boards of MicroMetl Corporation and GRC Reality. Mr. Spiezio is also
currently the Chairman of ADDAPT, an industry group focused on defense and aerospace suppliers based in New York State. Mr. Spiezio possesses
significant expertise about the aerospace and defense industries and the markets in which we compete and as a Board member will be able to provide
us with the benefits of such knowledge. In addition, his extensive executive leadership qualities and knowledge strengthens the Board’s collective
qualifications, skills and experience.

Brian J. Glenn. Mr. Glenn was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company in October 2023 to fill a newly created directorship previously
authorized by the Board. Mr. Glenn will serve an initial term expiring at the Company’s next annual meeting to be held and until his successor has
been duly elected and qualified. Mr. Glenn currently serves as the Chief Investment Officer for Premier Path Wealth Partners, an independent SEC-
registered investment advisory firm in Madison, New Jersey. Premier Path Wealth Partners manages more than $1.0 billion in assets on behalf of
business owners, high net worth families, trusts, and charities. In 2018, Mr. Glenn founded Olcott Square Investment Partners, an investment firm
with a focus on companies that demonstrate durable advantages and secular growth prospects. From 2008 to 2018, Mr. Glenn worked at W.R. Huff
Asset Management, an investment firm that employed a rigorous, primary research process managing concentrated investment strategies across the
capital structure, where he helped steer investments in public equities, high-yield bonds, and leveraged loans. Mr. Glenn graduated from the College
of New Jersey with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and earned his Master in Business Administration from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology’s Sloan School of Management. Mr. Glenn holds the designation of Chartered Financial Analyst and is a member of the CFA
Society, New York. The Board has determined that Mr. Glenn is an “independent director” in accordance with the listing standards of the OTC Pink
Market. The Board appointed Mr. Glenn to the Audit Committee. He brings to our Board his experience in the capital markets and his background
adds an important capability to the Board, and strengthens the Board’s collective qualifications, skills, and experience.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors and officers and persons who own, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of a

registered class of the Company’s common stock, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our
common stock.

29




Officers, directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports that they file. The
Company believes that during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, all reports for the Company’s executive officers and directors that were
required to be filed under Section 16 of the Exchange Act were filed on a timely basis except in the initial Form 3 filed with respect to Mr. Glenn,
disclosure was not made with respect to the ownership of certain shares of common stock as follows: (i) 2,876 shares of common stock over which
he has sole voting power and sole investment power; (ii) 2,430 shares of common stock which he owns jointly with his spouse over which he has
shared voting and investment power; and (iii) 3,223 shares of common stock owned by unrelated third parties over which he has sole investment
power but no voting power. Transactions with respect to the foregoing shares occurred prior to Mr. Glenn becoming a director of the Company. An
appropriate Form 3 - Amendment to correct such administrative oversight will be made.

Director Independence; Meetings of Directors; Corporate Governance; Committees of the Board

Our Board of Directors currently consists of seven (7) individuals. Six (6) of our directors are “independent” as defined in the Marketplace Rules of
The NASDAQ Stock Market. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, our Board of Directors held six (6) meetings, the Audit Committee held
five (5) meetings, and the Compensation Committee met on three (3) occasions and took action by unanimous written consent on one (1) occasion.

During the fiscal year ended March 29, 2019, our Board of Directors approved the formation of an audit committee and a compensation committee,
and each committee would initially have three (3) members consisting of independent directors. On October 11, 2023, the Board nominated the
following directors to each such committee: (i) Audit Committee — Eric C. Hugel (Chair), John P. Spiezio and Brian J. Glenn; and (ii) Compensation
Committee — Gerald Chafetz (Chair), Allen Gottlieb and Michael E. Rosenfeld. Each of these Board committees has a written charter approved by
the Board of Directors.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, a general description of the duties of the committees were as follows:

Audit Committee. Our Audit Committee acts to: (i) review with management the finances, financial condition and interim financial statements of the
Company; (ii) review with our independent registered public accounting firm the quarterly and year-end financial statements; (iii) review
implementation with the independent registered public accounting firm and management any action recommended by the independent registered
public accounting firm; and (iv) engage, retain and terminate our independent registered public accounting firm. Mr. Hugel, the Chair of the Audit
Committee was also designated as our Audit Committee Financial Expert. On August 1, 2023, the Board appointed Mr. John P. Spiezio to its Audit
Committee. On October 11, 2023, the Board appointed Mr. Glenn to the Audit Committee.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, all of the members of our Audit Committee were “independent” within the definition of that term as
provided by NASDAQ rules.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee acts to: (i) review, approve and administer compensation arrangements for our executive
officers; (ii) administer our equity-based compensation plans, (iii) establish and review general policies relating to the compensation and benefits of
our executive officers and other personnel, (iv) evaluate the relationship between executive officer compensation policies and practices and
corporate risk management to confirm those policies and practices do not incentivize excessive risk-taking, and (iv) evaluate and make
recommendations to our Board of Directors regarding the compensation of our non-employee directors.

Security holder recommendations of director nominees. The Board did not adopt any modifications to the procedures by which security holders may
recommend nominees to its Board of Directors.

Code of Ethics. The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics, which has been made available on its website https://www.iehcorp.com/ethics-code.
Insider Trading Policies and Procedures. The Company has adopted insider trading policies and procedures governing the purchase, sale, and/or
other dispositions of its securities by directors, officers and employees or the Company itself, that are reasonably designed to promote compliance

with insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to the Company. A copy of such policies and procedures is filed
hereto as Exhibit 19.1.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth below the summary compensation paid or accrued by the Company during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024, respectively, for the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer:

Option All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year &) @ &) @ ()] (6] (&)
David Offerman 2025 491,745 50,000 141,500 - 683,245

Chief Executive Officer, President 2024 486,022 - - - 486,022
Subrata Purkayastha®) 2025 250,000 30,000 41,700 - 321,700

Chief Financial Officer 2024 216,904 - 97,750 - 314,654
William H. Craig® 2025 - - - - -

Chief Financial Officer 2024 30,877 - - - 30,877

(1) Amounts reported in this column reflect the base salaries earned during the applicable year.

(2) Amounts reported in this column are related to the Cash Bonus Plan that was adopted in 1987.

(3) Ms. Purkayastha was appointed to the position of Interim Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective May 19, 2023 and promoted to permanent Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer effective November 1, 2023.

(4) Mr. Craig resigned his employment with the Company, effective May 17, 2023. His options expired unexercised.

David Offerman — Employment Agreement

On December 24, 2024, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with David Offerman, its Chief Executive Officer and President.
The employment agreement with Mr. Offerman became effective as of January 1, 2025, and will expire on December 31, 2029. Mr. Offerman’s prior
employment agreement expired on December 31, 2024. A copy of the full text of Mr. Offerman’s new employment agreement was filed with the
SEC on December 31, 2024 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 24, 2024. Under the new employment
agreement, Mr. Offerman receives an initial base salary of $491,745 per annum, subject to such increases, if any, as determined by the Board of
Directors, or if the Board so designates, the Compensation Committee of the Board. Mr. Offerman is also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus of
up to 100% of base salary for each fiscal year of employment based on performance targets and other key objectives established by the Board, or if
applicable, the Compensation Committee.

During the term of the employment agreement, Mr. Offerman is also eligible to receive equity or performance awards pursuant to any long-term
incentive compensation plan adopted by the Compensation Committee.

In the event of the termination of Mr. Offerman’s employment by us without “cause” or by him for “good reason”, as such terms are defined in the
employment agreement, he would be entitled to: (a) a severance payment of 36 months of base salary; (b) continued participation in our health and
welfare plans for up to 24 months; and (c) all accrued but unpaid compensation. Further, under the employment agreement, if within the three (3)
year period of a “change in control” (as defined in the employment agreement) either Mr. Offerman’s employment is terminated, or his title, position
or responsibilities are materially reduced and he terminates his employment, the Company shall pay and/or provide to him substantially the same
compensation and benefits as if his termination was without “cause” or for “good reason”, subject to limitation to avoid the imposition of the excise
tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) if such payments would constitute an “excess
parachute payment” as defined in Section 280G of the Code. Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Offerman is subject to customary
confidentiality, non-solicitation of employees and non-competition obligations that survive the termination of such agreement.
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Subrata Purkayastha — Employment Agreement

On October 26, 2023, the Company agreed to promote Subrata Purkayastha from interim Chief Financial Officer to permanent Chief Financial
Officer and to execute a new employment agreement effective as of November 1, 2023. Her new employment agreement is substantially similar to
her then existing employment agreement, dated as of June 1, 2023 except as follows: (i) the term of the new employment agreement shall be for
three years commencing November 1, 2023 and expiring October 31, 2026; (ii) her initial annual salary shall be $250,000 subject to such increases,
if any, as determined by the Board of Directors, or if the Board so designates, the Compensation Committee of the Board.; and (iii) she is being
granted 25,000 options to purchase the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $8.00 per share.

She will also be eligible to receive a cash bonus and stock option awards based on performance targets and other key objectives established by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. The employment agreement further provides for the payment of severance pay
and continued participation in health and welfare plans for up to 12 months in the case of termination without cause. Ms. Purkayastha is subject to
customary confidentiality and non-compete obligations that survive the termination of the agreement.

Cash Bonus Plan

In 1987, the Company adopted a cash bonus plan (the “Cash Bonus Plan”) for non-union, management and administration staff. Unless otherwise
approved by the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, contributions to the Cash Bonus Plan are made by the Company
only when the Company is profitable for the fiscal year. Bonus expense recorded for each of the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was
$386,570 and $203,175, respectively. As of March 31, 2025, and 2024, the Company’s accrued bonus was $330,000 and $150,000, respectively. The
Company paid the bonus amounts accrued as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 during June 2025 and June 2024, respectively.

Stock Option Plans

On November 18, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s 2020 Equity Based Compensation Plan (the “2020 Plan”) for submission to
shareholders at the 2020 annual meeting of shareholders. On December 16, 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of the 2020
Plan, which provides for the grant of stock options and restricted stock awards to purchase up to 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to
award in the future as incentive compensation to employees, senior management and members of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Options granted to employees under the 2020 Plan may be designated as options which qualify for incentive stock option treatment under Section
422A of the Internal Revenue Code, or options which do not qualify (non-qualified stock options).

Under the 2020 Plan, the exercise price of an option designated as an incentive stock option shall not be less than the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the day the option is granted. In the event an option designated as an incentive stock option is granted to a ten percent
(10%) or greater shareholder, such exercise price shall be at least 110 percent (110%) of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock and
the option must not be exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the day of the grant. The 2020 Plan also provides that holders of options that
wish to pay for the exercise price of their options with shares of the Company’s common stock must have beneficially owned such stock for at least
six months prior to the exercise date.

Exercise prices of non-incentive stock options may not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock. The aggregate fair
market value of shares subject to options granted to a participants(s), which are designated as incentive stock options, and which become exercisable
in any calendar year, shall not exceed $100,000.

On August 31, 2011, the Company’s shareholder approved the adoption of the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (“2011 Plan”) to provide for
the grant of stock options and restricted stock awards to purchase up to 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to all employees,
consultants and other eligible participants including senior management and members of the Board of Directors of the Company. The 2011 Equity
Incentive Plan expired on August 31, 2021 after which no further awards would be granted under such plan.
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Outstanding Equity Awards as of March 31, 2025

The following table sets forth certain information regarding outstanding equity awards granted to our named executive officers that remain

outstanding as of March 31, 2025.

Option Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option
Options Options Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable Un-exercisable Price Date
David Offerman 46,217 - 6.00 7/1/2025
225,000 - 20.00 7/29/2029
25,000 - 10.75 12/24/2034
Subrata Purkayastha 10,000 - 12.25 11/1/2031
25,000 - 8.00 10/26/2033
15,000 - 5.65 4/26/2034
Non-Employee Director Equity Awards
The following table sets forth certain information regarding outstanding equity awards granted to our non-employee directors that remain
outstanding as of March 31, 2025.
Option Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option
Options Options Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable Un-exercisable Price Date
Allen Gottlieb 5,000 - 6.01 5/8/2033
Gerald E. Chafetz 4,000 - 6.00 7/1/2025
5,000 - 6.01 5/8/2033
Eric C. Hugel 5,000 - 5.30 8/15/2026
5,000 - 6.01 5/8/2033
Michael E. Rosenfeld 5,000 - 12.75 10/26/2028
5,000 - 6.01 5/8/2033
John P. Spiezio 5,000 - 7.25 8/1/2033
Brian J. Glenn 5,000 - 8.00 10/11/2033

Non-Employee Director Compensation

The following table sets forth the compensation (cash and equity) received by our non-employee directors during the fiscal year ended March 31,

2025.
Fees Earned or Option
Name Paid in Cash Awards Total
Allen Gottlieb $ 15,000 - 15,000
Gerald E. Chafetz 17,500 - 17,500
Eric C. Hugel 17,500 - 17,500
Michael E. Rosenfeld 15,000 - 15,000
John P. Spiezio 15,000 - 15,000
Brian J. Glenn 15,000 - 15,000

Effective after March 31, 2023, non-executive directors were compensated through an annual director fee of $10,000, payable quarterly. Each
director shall also receive an annual fee of $5,000 for service on each committee, payable quarterly. The chairman of each committee shall receive

an additional annual fee of $2,500, payable quarterly.




Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth certain information as of June 12, 2025 with respect to: (i) the persons (including any “group” as that term is used in
Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%) of any class of the
Company’s voting securities; (ii) each Named Executive Officer and Director who owns common stock in the Company; and (iii) all Executive
Officers and Directors as a group. As of June 12, 2025, there were 2,390,251 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. The figures stated
below are based upon Schedule 13Ds, Schedule 13D/As, Form 3s and Form 4s filed with the SEC by the named persons.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares of
common stock as to which the individual or entity has sole or shared voting power or investment power. In computing the number of shares
beneficially owned by an individual or entity and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to options held by such
person that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of June 12, 2025 are considered outstanding, although these shares
are not considered outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed in the table below is ¢/o IEH Corporation, 140 sgth Street, Brooklyn, NY
11220.

Each of the shareholders listed has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares beneficially owned by the shareholder unless noted
otherwise, subject to community property laws where applicable.

Beneficial Ownership

Number Percent of
Beneficial Owner of Shares Total
Greater than 5% Stockholders
David Offerman(!) 686,317 25.5%
Gail Offerman(® 499,606 20.9%
Zeff Capital LPG) 232,862 9.7%
Intelligent Fanatics Capital Management LLC® 123,163 52%
Directors and Named Executive Officers
David Offerman(!) 686,317 25.5%
Subrata Purkayastha®) 50,000 2.0%
Gerald E. Chafetz(® 9,000 *
Allen Gottlieb(”) 5,000 *
Michael E. Rosenfeld® 10,000 *
Eric Hugel® 10,000 &
John P. Spiezio(!?) 5,000 *
Brian J. Glenn (1D 13,529 o
All executive officers and directors as a group (8 persons) 788,846 28.4%

()
2

3)

“)

)
(6)
(N
®)
)

Denotes ownership percentage of less than 1%.

All shares set forth above are owned directly by the named individual unless otherwise stated. The percentage ownership provided above is based upon
2,390,251 shares outstanding as of June 12, 2025.

Owns vested options to purchase 296,217 shares of common stock.

Based on the Company’s knowledge. The address of the principal business office of each of the reporting persons is 27110 Grand Central Parkway, APT.

10-V, Floral Park, NY 11005.

Based on a Schedule 13G dated January 4, 2022 filed by Zeff Capital, LP, Zeff Holding Company, LLC and Daniel Zeff. Each reporting person has shared

voting and dispositive power with respect to 232,862 shares of common stock. The address of the principal business office of each of the reporting persons

is 400 S. McCadden Pl., Los Angeles, CA 90020.

Based on a Schedule 13G dated March 31, 2025 filed by Intelligent Fanatics Capital Management LLC, IFCM MicroCap Fund LP and Cassel lan J. Each

of the reporting persons has shared voting and dispositive power over 123,163 shares of common stock. The address of the principal office of each of the

reporting persons is 350 Rumford Road Lititz, Pennsylvania 17543.

Owns vested options to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock.

Owns vested options to purchase 9,000 shares of common stock.

Owns vested options to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock.

Owns vested options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock.

Owns vested options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock.

(10) Owns vested options to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock.
(11) Mr. Glenn has sole ownership of 2,430 shares of common stock over which he has sole voting and investment power. Together with his spouse Mr. Glenn

has shared voting power and shared investment power over 2,876 shares of common stock. With respect to 3,223 shares of common stock Mr. Glen has no
voting power but has sole investment power. Mr. Glenn disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing 3,323 IEH shares of common stock. Mr. Glenn
owns vested options to purchase 5,000 shares of common stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of March 31, 2025, regarding shares of common stock that may be issued under the Company’s equity
compensation plans (the “Equity Plan”). Information is included for both equity compensation plans approved by the Company’s shareholders and
not approved by the Company’s shareholders.

©
Number of
securities
remaining
(a) available
Number of (b) for future
securities Weighted- issuance under
to be issued average equity
upon exercise compensation
exercise of price of plans
outstanding outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants warrants reflected in
Plan Category and rights and rights column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 564,217 $ 12.78 565,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - - -
Total 564,217 § 12.78 565,000
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Other than the employment terms for its executive officers as described elsewhere in this Form 10-K, and as described below, there have been no
related party transactions that are required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404. Messrs. Gottlieb, Chafetz, Hugel, Rosenfeld, Spiezio, and Glenn are
deemed independent directors of the Company pursuant to the SEC rules and regulations.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

On February 24, 2025, the Board of Directors engaged CBIZ CPAs P.C. (“CBIZ”) (PCAOB ID: 199) as the independent auditor of IEH for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2025.

Audit Fees. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, IEH audit fees were $372,045 and $386,000, respectively to CBIZ for fees
related to the audit of the Company’s financial statements.

Audit Related Fees. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, $0 and $0 were paid.
Tax Fees. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, $15,965 and $26,033 were paid for tax related services, respectively.

All Other Fees. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, IEH did not pay any other fees for services to its independent
auditor.

The Board of Directors has determined that the services provided by CBIZ and the fees paid to it for such services during the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2025 and 2024, have not compromised the independence of CBIZ and has been approved by the Audit Committee.

35




IEH CORPORATION
PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents filed as part of this report.

1. The following financial statements of IEH Corporation and Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm, are included in this report:

Page
Number
Independent Auditors’ Report — CBIZ CPAs P.C. (PCAOB ID: 199) F-2
Independent Auditors’ Report — Marcum LLP (PCAOB ID: 688) F-3
Balance Sheets F-5
Statements of Operations F-6
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity F-7
Statements of Cash Flows F-8
Notes to Financial Statements F-9

2. List of financial statement schedules:
All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. List of Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K. See part (b) below.
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(b) Exhibits

The exhibits filed as part of this annual Report on Form 10-K are set forth on the Exhibit Index, which Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by

reference.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.  Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (filed as Exhibit C-4 to Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February 27,
1991).

3.2 By-Laws of the Company (filed as Exhibit 3.2 on Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 27, 1994).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate of the Company (filed as Exhibit 4.1 on Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March
27, 1994).

42 Description of Securities (filed as Exhibit 4.2 on Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022).

10.1(%) 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit A to definitive Proxy Statement dated August 31, 2011).

10.2() 2020 Equity Stock Based Compensation Plan (filed as Annex A to definitive Proxy Statement dated November 23, 2020).

10.3() Employment Agreement between the Company and Subrata Purkayastha dated as of November 1, 2023 and effective as of November 1, 2023
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 7, 2023 and incorporated by reference herein).

10.4(7) Employment Agreement between the Company and David Offerman dated as of December 24, 2024 and effective as of January 1, 2025 (filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2024 and incorporated by reference herein).

19.1* Insider trading policies and procedures

2J1eE Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1%* Consent of CBIZ CPAs P.C.

23.2% Consent of Marcum LLP

31.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

37
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31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the

32.1%* Certifications by Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)_or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)_and

101.1%* The following information from IEH Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, formatted in Inline
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting language) and filed electronically herewith: (i) the Balance Sheets; (ii) the Statements of Operations;
(iii) the Statements of Stockholders’ Equity; (iv) the Statements of Cash Flow; and (v) the Notes to Financial Statements.

101.INS* Interactive Data Files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T formatted in Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language (“Inline XBRL”)

101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

*  Exhibits filed herewith.

** Exhibits furnished herewith.

1 Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, IEH Corporation has duly caused this
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

IEH CORPORATION

By: /s/ David Offerman

David Offerman

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: June 12, 2025

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ David Offerman June 12, 2025

David Offerman,

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Subrata Purkayastha June 12, 2025

Subrata Purkayastha,
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Allen Gottlieb June 12,2025
Allen Gottlieb, Director

/s/ Gerald E. Chafetz June 12, 2025
Gerald E. Chafetz, Director

/s/ Eric C. Hugel June 12, 2025
Eric C. Hugel, Director

/s/ Michael E. Rosenfeld June 12,2025
Michael E. Rosenfeld, Director

/s/ John P. Spiezio June 12, 2025
John P. Spiezio, Director

/s/ Brian J. Glenn June 12, 2025
Brian J. Glenn, Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
IEH Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of IEH Corporation (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2025, and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2025, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB")
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

Critical audit matters are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to
the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. We determined that there are no critical audit matters.

/s/ CBIZ CPAs P.C.

CBIZ CPAs P.C.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.

New York, NY

June 12, 2025
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
IEH Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of IEH Corporation (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024, and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2024, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB")
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit we are required to obtain an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required
to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Valuation of Inventories

We identified inventory valuation as a critical audit matter. The principal consideration for our determination that the valuation of inventory is a critical audit
matter is because of the significance of the balance sheet item, the significant assumptions management makes with regards to its valuation of inventory and
the high degree of subjective auditor judgment associated with evaluating management’s determination of the value of inventory.

To address the matter, it involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. Our procedures related to the valuation of inventory included, among others:

e We obtained an understanding and evaluated the design of the internal controls over management’s valuation of inventory.
e We evaluated the significant assumptions stated above and the completeness and accuracy of the underlying data used in management’s costing and
valuation.
e We obtained from management the master schedule of inventory values with adjustments from raw materials, work in process, and finished goods; the
schedule for calculation of manufacturing overhead; and the analysis of inventory reserve.
o  We assessed the qualifications and competence of management; and
0  We evaluated the methodologies used to determine the reasonableness and accuracy of adjustments, overhead rates, and allowance for
obsolete inventory.
e  We tested the pricing used to determine the average costs of raw materials and supplies, the net realizable value of finished goods and work in process,
and the estimates of which materials may be obsolete.
e  We assessed the reasonableness of the schedules of management’s estimates by inquiring with management to understand the analysis of inventoried
raw material parts as applied to quantities and costs for each of the periods presented.
e  We evaluated management’s provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventory calculation, by reviewing inputs, including historical sales activity
versus on-hand inventory levels, we reviewed current selling prices versus current cost.
/s/ Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019 through 2025.

New York, NY
June 14, 2024
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IEH CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS

As of
March 31,
2025 2024

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,539,828 $ 6,139,823
Accounts receivable, net 3,210,840 3,907,997
Inventories, net 7,265,347 8,731,618
Corporate income taxes receivable 813,413 2,199,174
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 201,160 193,718

Total current assets 22,030,588 21,172,330

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment, net 3,128,177 3,340,615
Operating lease right-of-use assets 1,967,752 2,324,753
Security deposit 75,756 75,756

Total assets $ 27,202,273 § 26,913,454

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 876,730 $ 781,082
Customer advance payments 173,074 882,525
Operating lease liabilities 395,325 351,804
Other current liabilities 801,245 861,208

Total current liabilities 2,246,374 2,876,619
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 1,841,993 2,237,317
Total liabilities 4,088,367 5,113,936

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 2,388,251 and 2,380,251 shares issued and

outstanding at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, respectively 23,883 23,803
Additional paid-in capital 8,281,344 7,966,074
Retained earnings 14,808,679 13,809,641

Total Stockholders’ Equity 23,113,906 21,799,518

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 27202273 $ 26,913,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenue

Costs and expenses:
Cost of products sold
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):

Interest income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net

IEH CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Income (loss) before (provision for) benefit from income taxes

(Provision for) benefit from income taxes

Net income (loss)

Net earnings (loss) per common share

Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average number of common and common equivalent shares:

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024

$ 28,783,861 $§ 21,524,544
21,309,983 18,257,621
6,154,214 6,156,191
744,802 871,619
28,208,999 25,285,431
574,862 (3,760,887)
425,291 126,694
425,291 126,694
1,000,153 (3,634,193)
(1,115) 717,291
$ 999,038 $§  (2,916,902)
$ 0.42 (1.23)
$ 0.41 (1.23)
2,381,824 2,375,342

2,443,255

2,375,342




Balances at March 31, 2023
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation
Net loss

Balances at March 31, 2024
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation

Net income

Balances at March 31, 2025

IEH CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Equity
2,370,251  § 23,703 ' $ 7,566,324 § 16,726,543 § 24,316,570
10,000 100 56,450 - 56,550
- - 343,300 - 343,300
- - - (2,916,902) (2,916,902)
2,380,251 3 23,803 3 7,966,074 § 13,809,641 $§ 21,799,518
8,000 80 48,670 - 48,750
- - 266,600 - 266,600
- - - 999,038 999,038
2,388,251 $ 23883 $ 8,281,344 $ 14,808,679 $ 23,113,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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IEH CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Inventory obsolescence provision
Operating lease right-of-use assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Corporate income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Customer advance payments
Operating lease liabilities
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of fiscal year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of fiscal year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Income Taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-8

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024

$ 999,038 $§  (2,916,902)

744,802 871,619

266,600 343,300

(62,904) 340,402

502,877 502,876
697,157 (927,795)

1,529,175 374,372
1,385,761 (475,701)
(7,442) (91,201)
95,648 (272,996)

(709,451) 861,886
(497,679) (483,184)
(59,963) (40,941)
4,883,619 (1,914,265)
(532,364) (347,168)
(532,364) (347,168)

48,750 56,550

48,750 56,550
4,400,005 (2,204,883)

6,139,823 8,344,706

$ 10,539,828 $ 6,139,823

- 8 216

$ 99,269 § 3,090




Note 1

Note 2

IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:
Overview:

IEH Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “IEH” or the “Company”’) began operations in New York, New York in 1941 and was incorporated as a
New York corporation in March, 1943, when Louis Offerman founded L. Offerman Tool & Die with his two sons, Bernard and Seymour.

The Company designs and manufactures Hyperboloid connectors that not only accommodate, but exceed military and aerospace specification
standards.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Revenue Recognition:

The core principle underlying Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”’) ASC Topic 606 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“ASC 606”),
is to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. ASC 606 sets out the following steps for an entity to follow when applying
the core principle to its revenue generating transactions:

e Identify the contract with a customer

e Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Determine the transaction price

e  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

e Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied

The Company recognizes revenue and the related cost of products sold when the performance obligations are satisfied. The performance obligations
are typically satisfied upon shipment of physical goods. In addition to the satisfaction of the performance obligations, the following conditions are

required for revenue recognition: an arrangement exists, there is a fixed price, and collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company does not offer any discounts, credits or other sales incentives. Historically, the Company has not had an issue with uncollectible
accounts receivable.

The Company will accept a return of defective products within one year from shipment for repair or replacement at the Company’s option. If the

product is repairable, the Company at its own cost, will repair and return it to the customer. If unrepairable, the Company will provide a replacement
at its own cost. Historically, returns and repairs have not been material.
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IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Revenue Recognition, continued
The Company’s disaggregated revenue by geographical location is as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Domestic $ 27,138,838 $§ 19,694,271
International 1,645,023 1,830,273
Total $ 28,783,861 $ 21,524,544

Approximately 8.0% and 19.4% of the international net revenues for fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, represent sales to
customers located in China.

The Company’s disaggregated revenue by industry as a percentage of total revenue is provided below:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024

Industry % %
Defense 65.7 60.6
Commercial Aerospace 19.9 27.3
Space 10.6 7.8
Other 3.8 4.3

100.0 100.0

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The Company places its
cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions that may exceed federally insured amounts at times. As of March 31, 2025
and 2024, the Company had cash equivalents of $0 and $3,500,000, respectively.

Inventories:

Inventories are comprised of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods, and are stated at cost, on an average basis, which does not exceed
net realizable value. The Company manufactures products pursuant to specific technical and contractual requirements.

The Company reviews its purchase and usage activity of its inventory of parts as well as work in process and finished goods to determine which
items of inventory have become obsolete within the framework of current and anticipated orders. The Company estimates which materials may be
obsolete and which products in work in process or finished goods may be sold at less than cost. A periodic adjustment, based upon historical
experience is made to inventory in recognition of this impairment. The Company’s allowance for obsolete inventory was $710,498 and $773,402 as
of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and was reflected as a reduction of inventory.
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Note 2

IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable.

At times, the Company’s cash in banks was in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits. The Company has not
experienced any loss as a result of these deposits. The Company’s accounts receivable are derived from revenue earned from customers or invoices
billed to customers that represent unconditional rights to payment. Our customers are located within the U.S. and internationally. The Company
believes there is no material exposure to any significant credit risks related to its accounts receivable and has not experienced any material losses in
such accounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company provides for depreciation and
amortization on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (5—7 years) of the related assets.

Maintenance and repair expenditures are charged to operations, and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Items of property, plant and
equipment, which are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, are removed from the asset and accumulated depreciation or amortization account. Any
gain or loss thereon is either credited or charged to operations.

Income Taxes:

The Company’s current provision for income taxes is based upon its estimated taxable income in each of the jurisdictions in which it operates, after
considering the impact on taxable income of temporary and permanent differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and any operating loss or tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income in those periods in which temporary differences become deductible. Should management determine that it is more likely than not that some
portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets would be established in the period such
determination was made.
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IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Uncertain Tax Positions:
Tax benefits are recognized only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The amount
recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized upon settlement. A liability for
unrecognized tax benefits is recorded for any tax benefits claimed in the Company’s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement
standards. The Company’s policy is to record expense in the statement of operations.
Net Income (Loss) Per Share:
The Company accounts for earnings per share pursuant to ASC Topic 260, “Earnings per Share”, which requires disclosure on the financial
statements of “basic” and “diluted” earnings per share. Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus common stock equivalents (if dilutive).

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share is calculated as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024

Net income (loss) $ 999,038 $  (2,916,902)
Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic $ 042 § (1.23)

Diluted $ 041 § (1.23)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding — basic 2,381,824 2,375,342
Dilutive effect of options to the extent that such options are determined to be in the money for the period 61,431 -
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding — fully diluted 2,443,255 2,375,342

Potentially dilutive securities outlined in the table below have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share because the effect of
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

For the Fiscal Years Ended
March 31,

2025 2024

Potentially dilutive options to purchase common shares 313,204 502,217
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Note 2

IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, consisting of accounts receivable and accounts payable, approximate their fair value due
to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The Company is exposed to credit risk through its cash but mitigates this risk by keeping these
deposits at major financial institutions.

ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements).

Fair value is defined as an exit price, representing the amount that would be received upon the sale of an asset or payment to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants.

Fair value is a market-based measurement that is determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
A three-tier fair value hierarchy is used to prioritize the inputs in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, or other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by market data and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data or correlation by other means.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. The Company utilizes estimates with respect to determining the useful lives of fixed assets, the fair value of stock-based instruments, the
calculation of inventory obsolescence, as well as determining the amount of the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets, net. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.




IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Segment Information:

The Company identifies its operating segments in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 280, “Segment Reporting”. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate
discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), its Chief Executive Officer, manages
the Company’s operations on a combined basis for the purposes of allocating resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined it operates and
manages its business in a single reportable operating segment.

The Company’s CODM reviews the segment net income (loss) that also is reported on the income statement as net income (loss) on a monthly basis,
and reviews revenues by industry on a quarterly basis. The measure of segment assets is reported on the balance sheet as total assets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

The Company has adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 360, “Property, Plant and Equipment-Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets,” and
requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used by an entity be reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no long-lived asset impairments
recognized by the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Compensation expense for stock options granted to directors, officers and key employees is based on the fair value of the award on the measurement
date, which is the date of the grant. The expense is recognized ratably over the service period of the award. The fair value of stock options is
estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value of any other stock awards is generally the market price of the Company’s

common stock on the date of the grant.

Fair value of the stock options granted during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were determined using the assumptions provided

below.
For the Fiscal Years Ended
March 31,
2025 2024

Weighted average stock price $ 747 $ 7.07
Expected life (in years) 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility 52.3% 54.5%
Dividend yield -% -%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate, per annum 4.6% 4.1%

Reclassification:

Certain amounts included in accounts receivable, net in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to prepaid expenses and other
current assets to conform to the current period presentation for comparative purposes.
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IEH CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Recent Accounting Standard Adopted:
In November 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-07 — Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which
enhances the disclosures required for reportable segments in annual and interim financial statements, including additional, more detailed information
about a reportable segment’s expenses. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company adopted ASU 2023-07 for the year ended March 31, 2025 retrospectively to all
periods presented in the financial statement. The adoption of this ASU had no impact on reportable segments identified and had no effect on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. Additional required disclosure has been included within Note 2 — Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies, under subsection Segment Information.
Recent Accounting Standard Not Yet Adopted:
In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-09 — Improvements to Income
Tax Disclosures, which enhances the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The standard is effective for public companies
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is available. The Company is still evaluating the full extent of the potential
impact of the adoption of ASU 2023-09, but believes it will not have a material impact on its financial statements and disclosures.
In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, — Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures
(Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses (“ASU 2024-03”). This ASU requires disclosures about specific types of
expenses included in the expense captions presented on the face of the statement of operations as well as disclosures about selling expenses. The
standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2027. The requirements will be applied prospectively with the option for retrospective application. Early adoption is permitted. The Company will
evaluate the full extent of the adoption of ASU 2024-03, but believes it will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements and
disclosures.
Subsequent Events:
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. The Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements.
Note3 INVENTORIES:
Inventories are comprised of the following:
As of March 31,
2025 2024
Raw materials $ 6,436,909 $ 7,808,768
Work in progress 989,172 1,372,041
Finished goods 549,764 324,211
Allowance for obsolete inventory (710,498) (773,402)
$ 7,265,347 § 8,731,618
Note4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, plant and equipment are as follows:
As of March 31,
2025 2024
Computers $ 697,206 $ 668,558
Leasehold improvements 2,940,271 2,938,171
Machinery and equipment 8,534,831 8,128,945
Tools and dies 5,529,923 5,436,350
Furniture and fixtures 372,917 370,760
Website development cost 9,785 9,785
$ 18,084,933 § 17,552,569
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (14,956,756) (14,211,954)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 3,128,177  $ 3,340,615




Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $744,802 and $871,619, respectively.
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NoteS OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Other current liabilities are comprised of the following:

As of March 31,
2025 2024
Payroll and vacation accruals $ 687,961 $ 731,642
Sales commissions 29,604 39,720
Other current liabilities 83,680 89,846

$ 801,245 $ 861,208

Note 6 LEASES:

Under ASC Topic 842, “Lessors—Leases with Variable Lease Payments”, lease expense is recognized as a single lease cost on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The lease term consists of non-cancelable periods and may include options to extend or terminate the lease term, when it is
reasonably certain such options will be exercised.

The Company enters into contracts in the normal course of business and assesses whether any such contracts contain a lease. The Company
determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception if it conveys the right to control the identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company classifies leases as operating or financing in nature and records the associated lease liability and right-of-use asset on
its balance sheet. The lease liability represents the present value of future lease payments, net of lease incentives, discounted using an incremental
borrowing rate, which is a management estimate based on the information available at the commencement date of a lease arrangement. With respect
to operating lease arrangements, the Company accounts for lease components, and non-lease components that are fixed, as a single lease component.
Non-lease components that are variable are expensed as incurred as in the statement of operations. The Company recognizes costs associated with
lease arrangements having an initial term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) on a straight-line basis over the lease term; such short-term
leases are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Balance sheet information related to our leases is presented below:

As of March 31,
Balance Sheet Location 2025 2024
Operating leases:
Right-of-use assets Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 1,967,752 $§ 2,324,753
Right-of-use liability, current Operating lease liabilities $ 395325 § 351,804
Right-of-use lease liability, long-term Operating lease liabilities, non-current $ 1,841,993 § 2,237317

The lease expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $571,383 and $567,643, respectively. In addition to the base rent, the
Company pays insurance premiums and utility charges relating to the use of the premises. The Company considers its present facilities to be
adequate for its present and anticipated future needs.

The basic minimum annual rental remaining on the leases is $2,600,724 as of March 31, 2025.
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Note 6 LEASES (Continued):

The weighted-average remaining lease term and the weighted average discount rate for operating leases were:

As of March 31,
2025 2024
Other information
Weighted-average discount rate — operating leases 6.00% 6.00%
Weighted-average remaining lease term — operating lease (in years) 4.9 5.8

The total remaining operating lease payments included in the measurement of lease liabilities on the Company’s balance sheet as of March 31, 2025
was as follows:

Operating
Lease

For the fiscal year ended March 31: Payments
2026 $ 519,036
2027 547,460
2028 563,891
2029 408,429
2030 334,492
Thereafter 227,416
Total gross operating lease payments 2,600,724
Less: imputed interest (363,406)
Total lease liabilities, reflecting present value of future minimum lease payments $ 2,237,318
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Note 7 INCOME TAXES:
The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of ASC Topic 740 (“ASC 740), “Income Taxes”. Under ASC 740, deferred income
tax assets or liabilities are computed based upon the temporary differences between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets and
liabilities using the currently enacted marginal income tax rates. Deferred income tax expense or credits are based on the changes in the deferred
income tax assets or liabilities from period to period.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Current:
Federal $ 64,300 $ 812,714
State and local (63,185) (1,530,005)
Total current tax provision (benefit) 1,115 (717,291)
Deferred:
Federal - -
State and local = =
Total deferred tax expense - -
Total provision (benefit) $ L115S § (717,291
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Note 7 INCOME TAXES (Continued):

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets are as follows:

As of March 31,
2025 2024
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss $ 1,416,684 $ 1,727,759
Operating right-of-use liability 519,058 592,908
Stock options 903,449 837,520
Accrued expenses - 48,376
Capitalized research and development costs 241,761 137,860
Inventory 187,534 263,969
Total deferred tax assets 3,268,486 3,608,392
Valuation allowance (2,319,591) (2,537,690)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 948,895 1,070,702
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation 492,376 538,334
Operating lease right-of-use assets 456,519 532,368
Total deferred tax liabilities 948,895 1,070,702
Deferred tax assets (liability), net $ - -
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Note 7 INCOME TAXES (Continued):

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes with the amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to income before

provision for income taxes is as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended
March 31,
2025 2024

U.S. federal statutory rate 21.0% 21.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 2.2% 1.9%
Stock-based compensation 0.)% 22)%
Other 3.0% -%
True-up of tax provision (4.2)% 12.4%
Valuation allowance (21.8)% 13.4)%
Effective tax rate 0.1% 19.7%

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company’s effective tax rate was 0.1%, which consisted principally of a federal rate of 21%, the Company’s
estimate of state taxes, net of federal benefit, of 2.2%, offset by a credit of (4.2%) for true-ups and a decrease (21.8%) in the valuation allowance for
the Company’s deferred tax assets at March 31, 2025.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company’s effective tax rate was 19.7%, which consisted principally of a federal rate of 21%, the
Company’s estimate of state taxes, net of federal benefit, of 1.9%, and true-up to prior years returns of 12.4%, offset by a charge of (13.4%) for an
increase in the valuation allowance for the Company’s deferred tax assets at March 31, 2024.

As of March 31, 2025, for U.S. federal and state income tax reporting purposes, the Company has approximately $6,247,000 of unused net operating
losses (“NOLs”) available for carry forward to future years. As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“TCJA”), for U.S. income tax
purposes, NOLs generated in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017 may be carried forward indefinitely to offset future taxable income. The
total amount of the Federal NOL as of March 31, 2025, may be carried forward indefinitely. The state and city NOLs may generally be carried
forward for twenty years and may be applied against future taxable income. Further, the benefit from utilization of NOL carry forwards could be
subject to limitations due to material ownership changes that could occur if the Company issues additional shares of common stock.

The Company remains subject to examination by tax authorities for fiscal tax years ended March 31, 2021 and later.

Based upon the Company’s recent taxable loss history, the Company performed an analysis and determined that it was necessary to establish a
valuation reserve with respect to its net deferred income tax assets as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.

As of March 31, 2025, management does not believe that the Company has any material uncertain tax positions that would require it to measure and
reflect the potential lack of sustainability of a position on audit in its financial statements. The Company will continue to evaluate its uncertain tax
positions in future periods to determine if measurement and recognition in its financial statements is necessary. The Company does not believe there
will be any material changes in its unrecognized tax positions over the next year.
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EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS:
2011 Equity Incentive Plan

On August 31, 2011, the Company’s shareholder approved the adoption of the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (“2011 Plan) to provide for
the grant of stock options and restricted stock awards to purchase up to 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to all employees,
consultants and other eligible participants including senior management and members of the Board of Directors of the Company. The 2011 Equity
Incentive Plan expired on August 31, 2021 after which no further awards will be granted under such plan.

2020 Equity Incentive Plan

On November 18, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s 2020 Equity Based Compensation Plan (the “2020 Plan”) for submission to
shareholders at the 2020 annual meeting of shareholders. On December 16, 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of the 2020
Plan, which provides for the grant of stock options and restricted stock awards to purchase up to 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to
award in the future as incentive compensation to employees, senior management and members of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Options granted to employees under both the 2011 Plan and the 2020 Plan (together the “Plans”) may be designated as options which qualify for
incentive stock option treatment under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code, or options which do not qualify (non-qualified stock options).

Under the Plans, the exercise price of an option designated as an incentive stock option shall not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock on the day the option is granted. In the event an option designated as an incentive stock option is granted to a ten percent (10%) or
greater shareholder, such exercise price shall be at least 110 percent (110%) of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock and the option
must not be exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the day of the grant. The Plans also provide that holders of options that wish to pay for
the exercise price of their options with shares of the Company’s common stock must have beneficially owned such stock for at least six months prior
to the exercise date.

Exercise prices of non-incentive stock options may not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock.
The aggregate fair market value of shares subject to options granted to a participant(s), which are designated as incentive stock options, and which

become exercisable in any calendar year, shall not exceed $100,000.
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EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued):
Stock-based compensation expense

Stock-based compensation expense is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses included in the statement of operations. For the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, stock-based compensation expense was $266,600 and $343,300, respectively.

As of March 31, 2025, there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to unamortized stock options. It is the Company’s policy that any
unrecognized stock-based compensation cost would be adjusted for actual forfeitures as they occur.

Stock option activity

The following table provides the stock option activity:

Weighted Aggregate
Avg. Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value (in
Shares Price Term (Years) thousands)
Balance as of March 31, 2024 502,217  $ 13.41 521 $ 4
Granted 70,000 7.47
Exercised (8,000) 6.09
Forfeited or Expired - -
Balance as of March 31, 2025 564,217 $ 12.78 485 $ 335
Exercisable as of March 31, 2025 564,217 $ 12.78 485 S 335

Note 9

The weighted average grant date fair value per share was $3.81 and $3.61 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pretax intrinsic value (i.e., the difference between the Company’s closing stock
price on the last trading day of the period and the exercise price, times the number of shares) that would have been received by the option holders
had all option holders exercised their in-the-money options on those dates.

CASH BONUS PLAN:

In 1987, the Company adopted a cash bonus plan (the “Cash Bonus Plan”) for non-union, management and administration staff. Unless otherwise
approved by the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, contributions to the Cash Bonus Plan will only be funded by the
Company for payment of bonuses with respect to any fiscal year, when the Company is profitable for such fiscal year. Bonus expense recorded for
each of the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $386,570 and $203,175, respectively. As of March 31, 2025, and 2024, the Company’s
accrued bonus was $330,000 and $150,000, respectively. The Company paid the bonus amounts accrued as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 during June
2025 and June 2024, respectively.
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Note 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
The Company maintains its operations in facilities located in both New York and Pennsylvania.

On December 1, 2020, the Company entered into a 120-month extension of its lease agreement for an industrial building in Brooklyn, New York,
expiring December 1, 2030. Monthly rent at inception was $20,400, which escalates annually to a monthly rent of $28,426 for the final year of the
lease term. The Company maintains a security deposit of $40,800, which is included in Security deposit on the accompanying balance sheet.

On January 29, 2021, the Company entered into an §7-month lease agreement for an industrial building in Allentown, Pennsylvania, expiring March
30, 2028. Monthly rent at inception was $18,046, which escalates annually to a monthly rent of $20,920 for the final year of the lease term. The
Company maintains a security deposit of $35,040, which is included in Security deposit on the accompanying balance sheet.

The rental expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, was $571,383 and $567,643, respectively.

The Company has a collective bargaining multi-employer pension plan (“Multi-Employer Plan”) with the United Auto Workers of America, Local
259 (ID No. 136115077). The Multi-Employer Plan is covered by a collective bargaining agreement with the Company, which expires on March 31,
2027.

Contributions are made in accordance with a negotiated labor contract and are based on the number of covered employees employed per month.
With the passage of the Multi-Employer Pension Plan Amendments Act of 1990 (the “1990 Act”), the Company may become subject to liabilities in
excess of contributions made under the collective bargaining agreement. Generally, these liabilities are contingent upon the termination, withdrawal,
or partial withdrawal from the Multi-Employer Plan. The risks of participating in a multiemployer plan are different from single-employer plans, for
example, assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating
employers, if a participating employer stops contributing to the multiemployer plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may become the obligation
of the remaining participating employers, and if a participating employer chooses to stop participating in these multiemployer plans, the employer
may be required to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan.

Based upon the Multi-Employer Plan’s consulting actuary, as of January 1, 2024, the UAW Local 259 Pension Plan was greater than 100% funded
for purposes of the Annual Certification of Plan Status under IRC Section 432. The total contributions charged to operations under the provisions of
the Multi-Employer Plan were $34,179 and $43,455 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The Company has not taken
any action to terminate, withdraw or partially withdraw from the Multi-Employer Plan nor does it intend to do so in the future.

The Company maintains a defined contribution benefit plan under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code covering substantially all qualified

employees of the Company, or the 401(k) Plan. Eligible employees are able to make contributions under the under the 401(k) Plan. The Company
does not provide matching contributions.
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CONCENTRATIONS:

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, two customers accounted for 31.9% of the Company’s net sales, each represented 17.8% and 14.1%,
respectively.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, two customers accounted for 29.9% of the Company’s net sales, each represented 17.5% and 12.4%,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2025, one customer accounted for 12.0% of the Company’s accounts receivable.
As of March 31, 2024, three customers accounted for 55.4% of accounts receivable, each represented 30.8%, 13.6% and 11.0%, respectively.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025 three vendors accounted for 34.0% of the Company’s purchases, each represented 11.7%, 11.2%, and
11.1%, respectively.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024, two vendors accounted for 22.2% of the Company’s purchases, each represented 12.1% and 10.1%,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2025, one vendor accounted for 12.0% of the Company’s accounts payable.

As of March 31, 2024, two vendors accounted for 22.3% of accounts payable, each represented 12.1% and 10.2%, respectively.
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Overview

All IEH Corporation (“IEH” or “the Company”) personnel must be aware that the securities laws impose important restrictions on “insiders” of companies with
respect to their securities transactions. In appropriate cases, “insider” status can extend to persons who are not IEH employees, but who are retained by IEH for
a particular project or on a continuing basis. An “insider” is any person who, as a result of a special relationship with IEH, learns of material, undisclosed
information about IEH or, in some cases, learns information about others.

The principal restriction on insiders is that insiders may not buy or sell securities on the basis of material information known to them but not to the public or
“tip” others concerning such information. Violations of these restrictions can carry criminal as well as civil penalties.

In light of these restrictions, and in order to avoid even the appearance of impropriety, IEH personnel may not trade in securities of IEH or any other company
about which they possess material, non-public information until such information becomes public. The guidelines set forth in this policy are designed to protect
you from violating this policy.

All IEH personnel should be continually mindful of the necessity of maintaining the confidentiality of information as well as the problems of insider trading.
This policy reflects IEH’s long-standing commitment to maintain compliance with the securities laws. Because the securities laws are comprehensive, far-
reaching and constantly evolving, the text of this policy cannot possibly deal with all of the considerations that may be applicable to securities transactions. If
you have a specific question, you should contact IEH’s Chief Executive Officer (or, if applicable, IEH’s Corporate Compliance Officer) and abstain from the
conduct in question until you have been informed that the conduct is permissible.

Applicability

This policy applies to all IEH officers and employees, all members of the Company’s Board of Directors, and any consultants and contractors of the Company,
as well as members of the immediate families (spouse, parents, grandparents, children, grandchildren and siblings, including any such relationships that arise
through marriage or adoption) who reside with any of them, or anyone else who lives in their household, and such family members who live elsewhere but
whose transactions in Company securities are directed by such employees, officers and directors or subject to their influence and control. This Policy does not
apply to any such persons who (i) are not employed by the Company, (ii) are not in possession of material, non-public insider information about the Company
and its business, (iii) do not reside in the same household as an officer, director or employee of the Company, (iv) no person who is an officer, director or
employee of the Company, has any influence or control over such person, and such person’s ownership or trading of shares of the Company’s common stock.

All references in this Policy to IEH “personnel” include any and all of these foregoing categories of people. IEH recognizes such broad coverage might not be
appropriate in all cases. Any such instances should be discussed promptly with IEH’s outside legal counsel, Steven L. Glauberman, Esq. at Becker & Poliakoff,
LLP, (212) 599-3322.

This Policy also imposes specific blackout periods and pre-clearance procedures on officers, director and certain other designated employees who receive or

have access to Material Non- Public Information regarding the Company and/or are subject to the reporting provisions and trading restrictions of Section 16 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Securities Exchange Act”).
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Confidentiality

It is the duty of IEH personnel and of each person affiliated with IEH to maintain the confidentiality of information belonging to or relating to IEH or relating
to others and obtained through a relationship with IEH. Adhering to this principle is a condition of continued employment.

Set forth in the Definitions section at the end of this policy is a discussion of “inside information” and “material information” in the context of “insider trading”
and “tipping.” The kind of information that may merit confidential treatment could be much broader, however.

You should take every practicable step to preserve the confidentiality of information. For example:
a) Don’t discuss material information in elevators, hallways, restaurants, airplanes, taxi cabs or any place where you can be overheard;
b) Don’t gossip about confidential information;

¢) Don’t read confidential documents in public places (this can include working on your laptop while traveling in an airplane) or discard them where they
can be retrieved by others;

d) Don’t carry confidential documents in elevators, hallways, etc. in an exposed manner;

e) Beware of the carrying quality of conversations conducted on speaker telephones in offices, and the potential for eavesdropping on conversations
conducted on cell phones, airplane telephones or marine radios, for example;

f) Don’t leave confidential documents unattended in conference rooms and don’t leave confidential documents behind when the conference is over;
g) Cover confidential documents on your desk before you leave work or your hotel room, if you are traveling;

h) Be careful when giving out the whereabouts of personnel not in the office or revealing the presence of specific visitors to the office. The mere fact of a
meeting or the destination of a trip may reveal something confidential; and

i) Under no circumstances should personnel provide confidential IEH documents to third parties without the express consent of the Legal Department.
This includes, but is not limited to, any confidential Company documents relating to IEH customers, competitors or suppliers.

Obviously, a list such as this covers the more obvious circumstances. It is the responsibility of IEH personnel to take whatever steps are appropriate to preserve
the confidentiality of information.
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Responding to Inquiries from the Press and Others

If someone outside the Company, such as the news media, a securities analyst or investor, asks you questions either directly or through another person, do not
attempt to answer them. You should obtain the name and telephone number of the person making the inquiry and immediately notify the Chief Executive
Officer. If you have any questions concerning this requirement, you should contact the Chief Executive Officer for clarification.

IEH has designated spokespersons to deal with all inquiries in order to ensure appropriate and consistent responses. The designated spokesperson will not
comment until an appropriate response is formulated based on the existing facts and circumstances. Keep in mind that the federal securities laws impose severe
penalties for selective disclosure of material non-public information to certain individuals and not the public as a whole.

Improper Insider Trading

While IEH policy prohibits all misuse of confidential information obtained by IEH personnel in connection with their employment by or relationship with the
Company, including all securities trading based on such information, certain trading activities also violate the law. Because of the severity of the penalties
provided by law and the potential for damage to IEH’s name and business reputation as a result of such unlawful trading, these legal prohibitions are
summarized below.

General Prohibitions

IEH has a long-standing commitment to comply with federal, state and applicable foreign securities laws and regulations. In the course of business operations,
personnel may become aware of material, non-public information. United States securities laws and the laws of certain foreign countries (as well as IEH
policy) prohibit persons from trading securities on the basis of material, non-public information or providing such information to others who trade.

The law requires that an insider who is in possession of material, non-public information must either: (a) abstain from: (i) trading in securities (including but
not limited to equity securities, debt securities, and puts, calls, options, etc.) on the basis of material information that has not been disclosed to the public; or (ii)
disclosing such information to another person — a “tippee” — who uses it for trading purposes regardless of whether the “tippee” is related to the insider or is an
entity (for example, a trust) in which the insider has an interest; or (b) disclose it to the investing public.

In light of IEH’s policy designating specific spokespersons responsible for communications with the investing public, this “abstain or disclose” rule established
by law translates into the corporate policy that employees who are in possession of material, non-public information must abstain from trading on the basis of
that information or disclosing the information to a “tippee.” Only authorized officers of the Company are permitted to decide the timing and content of public
disclosures regarding the Company and employees may not trade or “tip” until public disclosure has been made and adequate time has passed to assure broad
dissemination of the information. The fact that an insider who possesses material inside information may have relied on factors other than the inside
information in purchasing or selling securities will not absolve him or her from liability. If the insider is in possession of such information, he or she must
refrain from any transaction in IEH’s securities. It is no excuse that the insider considered him- or herself under a duty (for example, as a trustee of a trust) to
trade or that he or she did not intend to defraud anyone. As a result, IEH personnel should not enter into any relationship (such as that of a trustee) that might
subject them to such a duty to trade.
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When Is Information Deemed Public?

A person with material, non-public information may trade only when he or she is certain that an official announcement of the material information has been
sufficiently publicized so that the public has had the opportunity to evaluate the information. Examples of effective disclosures include public filings with
securities regulatory authorities and issuance of Company press releases. However, the insider may not attempt to “beat the market” by trading simultaneously
with, or shortly after, the official release of material information. As a result, this policy requires that all IEH personnel wait two full trading days (days when
the stock market is open) after the release of such information before trading in IEH securities.

Insider Trading Compliance Officer

IEH has designated David Offerman, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, as its current Insider Trading Compliance Officer (“Compliance Officer”). Please
direct your questions regarding any of the matters discussed in this policy to David Offerman who can be reached at (718) 492-9698 or dave@iehcorp.com. In
the event that Mr. Offerman is unavailable or conflicted from making a determination under this Policy, the duties of the Company’s Insider Trading
Compliance Officer shall be performed by Ms. Subrata Purkayastha, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. In the event that neither Mr. Offerman nor Ms.
Purkayastha are available, the duties of the Insider Trading Compliance Officer shall be fulfilled by a majority of the Company’s independent directors.

Policy Rules

The following are the rules of IEH’s Insider Trading Policy that apply to all IEH personnel, regardless of their level in the organization. It is very important
that you understand and follow these rules. If you violate them, you may be subject to disciplinary action by the Company (including termination of your
employment for cause). You could also be in violation of applicable securities laws (and subject to civil and criminal penalties, including fines and
imprisonment). Note that it is your individual responsibility to comply with the laws against insider trading. This Policy is intended to assist you in complying
with these laws, but you must always exercise appropriate judgment in connection with any trade in the Company’s stock.

99 ¢

The terms “material information,” “nonpublic or ‘inside’ information,” “black-out period” and “trading window” are defined at the end of this policy.

1. Don’t trade during black-out periods. IEH requires that all personnel refirain from trading during black-out periods (whether regularly scheduled
black-out periods, or special black-out periods implemented from time to time). If you are informed that the Company has implemented a special
black-out period, you may not disclose the fact that trading has been suspended to anyone, including family members (other than those subject to this
policy, who should be informed so that they do not trade in IEH stock), friends or brokers, and should treat this fact as material, nonpublic
information. Remember to cancel any “limit” orders or other pending trading orders you have in place during a black-out period.
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Don’t trade while in possession of material, nonpublic information. As discussed above, from time to time you may come into possession of
material, nonpublic information as a result of your relationship with the Company. You may not buy or sell any stock of the Company or other
securities involving the Company’s stock at any time while you possess material nonpublic information concerning the Company (whether during a
regular quarterly black-out period, or any special black-out period described below). You must wait to trade until newly released material information
has been public for at least two full trading days (days on which the market on which IEH’s securities are traded is open).

You must pre-clear trades involving IEH stock. Because you may be unsure about whether information you possess would qualify as material,
nonpublic information and whether you therefore should refrain from trading in the Company’s stock, you must pre- clear any transactions involving
IEH stock that you intend to engage in — even during an “open” trading window. To “pre-clear” a transaction, you must get the approval of the
Compliance Officer before you enter into the transaction. You should contact the Compliance Officer at least 3 days before you intend to engage in
any transaction to allow enough time for pre-clearance procedures.

Don’t give nonpublic information to others. Don’t give nonpublic information concerning the Company (commonly referred to as “tipping”) to any
other person, including family members, and don’t make recommendations or express opinions about trading in the Company’s stock under any
circumstance.

Don’t participate in Internet “chat rooms” in which IEH is discussed or post information concerning IEH on investor message boards. You may
not participate in on-line dialogues involving IEH, its business or its stock. You also should refrain from posting information regarding IEH, its
business or its stock on investor message boards.

Don’t use nonpublic information to trade in other companies’ stock. Don’t trade in the stock of the Company’s customers, vendors, suppliers or
other business partners when you have nonpublic information concerning the Company or these business partners that you obtained in the course of
your relationship with the Company and that would give you an advantage in trading.

Don’t engage in speculative transactions involving the Company’s stock. Don’t engage in any transactions that suggest you are speculating in IEH’s
stock (that is, that you are trying to profit in short-term movements, either increases or decreases, in the stock price). You may not engage in any
“short” sale, “sale against the box™ or any equivalent transaction involving the Company’s stock (or the stock of any of IEH’s business partners in any
of the situations described above). A “short” sale involves selling shares that you do not own at a specified price with the expectation that the price
will go down so you can buy the shares at a lower price before you have to deliver them.

Note that many “hedging” transactions, such as “collar” transactions, contingent or forward sales, and other similar or related arrangements my indirectly
involve a short sale. These transactions are prohibited by this policy.

In addition, IEH strongly recommends that you not “margin” or pledge your IEH stock to secure a loan to you and that you not purchase IEH stock “on
margin” (that is, borrow funds to purchase stock).
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The exercise (without a sale) of stock options issued under either the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2020 Equity Based Compensation Plan is
exempt from this Policy, since the other party to the transaction is the Company itself and the price does not vary with the market but is fixed by the terms of
the option agreement or the plan. Any subsequent sale of such shares acquired through the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan or the Company’s 2020
Equity Based Compensation Plan is subject to this Policy.

Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides an affirmative defense against insider trading liability for a transaction done pursuant to a written
plan, or a binding contract or instruction or pursuant to “blind trusts” (trusts in which investment control has been delegated to a third party, such as in
institutional or professional trustee), in each case entered into in good faith at a time when the insider was not aware of material non-public information, even
though the transaction in question may occur at a time when the person is aware of material non-public information. IEH may, in appropriate circumstances,
permit transactions pursuant to a trading program or blind trust that fully complies with Rule 10b5-1 to take place during black- out periods. If you are subject
to the pre-clearance procedures or black-out periods of this policy and you wish to establish a trading program or blind trust, you must pre-clear it with the
Company’s Compliance Officer. With respect to arrangements that result or may result in transactions taking place during black-out periods, the Compliance
Officer will review such arrangements in light of guidelines that he or she from time to time establishes, with input from the Board of Directors. IEH reserves
the right to bar any transactions in Company stock, even those pursuant to arrangements previously approved, if the Compliance Officer or the Board of
Directors determines that such a bar is in IEH’s best interest.

If you are subject to a black-out period imposed by this policy and your employment terminates during a black-out period (or if you otherwise leave while in
possession of material, nonpublic information), you will continue to be subject to the policy, and specifically to the ongoing prohibition against trading, until
the black-out period ends (or otherwise until the close of the second full trading day following public announcement of the material, nonpublic information).
IEH may institute stop-transfer instructions to its transfer agent in order to enforce this provision.
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Potential Criminal and Civil Liability and/or Disciplinary Action

The penalties for “insider trading” include civil fines of up to three times the profit gained or loss avoided, and criminal fines of up to $1,000,000 and up to ten
years in jail for each violation. You can also be liable for improper transactions by any person to whom you have disclosed nonpublic information or made
recommendations on the basis of such information as to trading in the Company’s securities (“tippee liability”). The Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) has imposed large penalties even when the disclosing person did not profit from the trading. The SEC, the stock exchanges and the National
Association of Securities Dealers (“NASD”) use sophisticated electronic surveillance techniques to uncover insider trading. IEH personnel who violate this
policy shall also be subject to disciplinary action, which may include, but not be limited to, ineligibility for future participation in IEH’s equity incentive plans
or termination of employment with or engagement by the Company.

Definitions Used in This Policy

1.

Material Information. It is not possible to define all categories of “material” information, but information should be regarded as material if it is likely
that it would be considered important to an investor in making an investment decision regarding the purchase or sale of the IEH securities.

While it may be difficult to determine whether particular information is material or not, there are some categories of information that are particularly
sensitive and that should almost always be considered material. Examples include: financial results and projections (especially to the extent the
Company’s own expectations regarding its future financial results differ from analysts’ expectations), news of a merger or acquisition, gain or loss of a
major customer or supplier, major product announcements, changes in senior management, a change in the Company’s accountants, or any major
problems or successes of the business. This list of examples obviously is not exhaustive. Remember - either positive or negative information may be
material. The fact that an insider or “tippee” engages in a trade on the basis of particular information that has not been publicly disclosed may, in and
of itself, be sufficient evidence that the information is material. If you have any questions regarding whether information you possess is material or
not, you should contact the Compliance Officer.

Nonpublic or “Inside” Information. Information about the Company is considered to be inside or “nonpublic” if it is known within the Company but
not yet disclosed to the general public. It may include anything learned about IEH or its securities as a result of a special relationship with IEH.
“Inside” information may also include information about other companies and their securities learned as a result of a special relationship with IEH.
IEH generally discloses information to the public either via press release or in reports that the Company is required to file with the SEC. If you have
any questions regarding whether any information you possess is nonpublic or has been publicly disclosed, you should contact the Compliance Officer.

Black-Out Period; Trading Window. During the end of each fiscal quarter and until public disclosure of the financial results for that quarter, persons
subject to this policy may possess material nonpublic information about the expected financial results for the quarter. Even if you don’t actually
possess any such information, any trades by you during that period may give the appearance that you are trading on inside information. Accordingly,
the Company has designated a quarterly “black-out period” on trading beginning 14 calendar days prior to the end of each quarter and ending at the
close of the second full trading day (days on which the stock market is open) after disclosure of the quarter’s financial results. The period outside
the black-out period is referred to as the open “trading window.”

In addition to the regular black-out periods described above, IEH may from time to time designate other periods of time as special black-out periods
(for example, if there is some development with the Company’s business that merits a suspension of trading by Company personnel). IEH’s
Compliance Officer will notify you if you are subject to a special black-out period of this sort.

Questions

Please direct questions you have regarding this policy and any transactions in Company securities to David Offerman, IEH’s Chief Executive Officer, at (718)
492-9698.
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AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES

/s/ Subrata Purkayastha /s/ David Offerman

Subrata Purkayastha David Offerman
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer and Compliance Officer
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Exhibit 21

IEH CORPORATION

SUBSIDIARIES

None



Exhibit 23.1
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Consent
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the (i) Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-224675); and (ii) Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-283471) of our report dated June 12, 2025 with respect to the audit of the consolidated financial statements of IEH Corporation as of March 31,
2025 which report is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
/s/ CBIZ CPAs P.C.

New York, NY

June 12, 2025



Exhibit 23.2
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Consent
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the (i) Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-224675); and (ii) Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-283471) of our report dated June 14, 2024 with respect to the audit of the consolidated financial statements of IEH Corporation as of March 31,
2024, which report is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
/s/ Marcum LLP

New York, NY

June 12, 2025



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, David Offerman, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 of IEH Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a)

b)

¢)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: June 12, 2025

/s/ David Offerman

David Offerman

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Subrata Purkayastha, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 of IEH Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: June 12, 2025

/s/ Subrata Purkayastha

Subrata Purkayastha
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of IEH Corporation (the “Company’’) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, being, David Offerman, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer), and Subrata Purkayastha, Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer), of the Company, respectfully certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) This Report on Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of the Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: June 12, 2025

/s/ David Offerman /s/ Subrata Purkayastha
David Offerman Subrata Purkayastha
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Financial Officer
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

(Principal Executive Officer)

This Certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of the Report, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such
filing. A signed original of the written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



